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As we look ahead, Sindh Modaraba is not just aiming for growth, it is aiming for 
excellence. With firm roots in integrity and faith-based finance, and eyes set on 
the horizon, Sindh Modaraba is confidently reaching for the skies ambitious to 
be a leading force in Pakistan’s Islamic financial landscape.



VISION

Our vision is to be one of the leading 
Islamic Financial Institution within 
Modaraba sector by offering Shari’ah 
compliant solutions for an optimal 
satisfaction of customers.

The Sukkur Barrage, built in 1932 on the Indus River in Sindh, Pakistan, is one of the world’s 
largest irrigation systems, transforming arid lands into fertile agricultural fields.
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MISSION

The basic aim of Sindh Modaraba is to seek 
Allah’s blessing for transformation of our 
business dealings in accordance with the 
principles enshrined in the Islamic Shari’ah. 
And to develop an Islamic Institution by 
implementing Allah’s will in line with the 
practices of His Prophet (صلى الله عليه وسلم) by meeting its 
stated objectives built on Trust, Integrity, 
Innovation and Good Governance for 
meeting expectation of its stakeholders.
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CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW REPORT
It gives me great pleasure to present the Chairman’s 
Review Report to the certificate holders of Sindh 
Modaraba (the Modaraba), highlighting the overall 
performance of the Board of Directors and its 
contribution towards achieving the strategic 
objectives of the Modaraba.

In compliance with the regulatory requirements, 
including the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2019, the Board of 
Directors of the Modaraba has established an 
effective governance framework. The Board 
functions through a well-defined structure 
comprising committees, clear procedures, and 
regular meetings, thereby ensuring effective 
oversight and accountability. Comprehensive 
agendas and supporting documents are circulated 
well in advance, enabling informed and constructive 
deliberations. The Board met regularly during the 
year, at least once every quarter, to review the 
performance of the Modaraba, monitor risks, and 
provide strategic guidance to management.

Despite a significant reduction of 50% in the policy 
rate announced by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) 
during the year, the Modaraba has maintained a 
sound financial standing. This resilience 
demonstrates the robustness of our business model 
and the effectiveness of the strategies pursued by 
the management under the guidance of the Board.

To enhance competitiveness in a challenging 
operating environment, we have strengthened our 
core team, particularly the marketing function, to 
ensure sustainable growth. While this has 
momentarily increased operating expenses by 
35.41%, the benefits are already evident with an 
impressive growth of 124.18% in the Islamic 
financing portfolio over the previous year. We are 
confident that these strategic initiatives will yield 
greater value for certificate holders in the coming 
financial year and beyond.

The Board also undertakes an annual evaluation of 
its own performance in line with the requirements of 
the Code of Corporate Governance. This ensures that 
the Board continues to operate effectively, uphold 
high standards of governance, and remain aligned 
with the long-term interests of certificate holders.

Looking ahead, we acknowledge that the external 
environment will remain challenging due to 
macroeconomic uncertainties. However, the Board 
and management remain committed to steering the 
Modaraba with resilience, prudence, and strategic 
foresight. With the support of our stakeholders, and 
by adhering to responsible governance and ethical 
business practices, we are confident that Sindh 
Modaraba will continue to safeguard the interests of 
certificate holders, capitalize growth opportunities, 
and contribute towards the promotion of Islamic 
finance in Pakistan.

On behalf of the Board, I express my sincere 
gratitude to our Sponsors, Certificate holders, 
Regulators, Management, Employees, and all other 
Stakeholders for their continued confidence and 
support. Together, we shall strive to strengthen the 
foundations of the Modaraba and play our role in 
Pakistan’s journey towards sustainable and inclusive 
economic growth.

Waseem Mehdi Syed
Chairman
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CEO’s MESSAGE
It gives me immense pleasure to present the 
Annual Report of Sindh Modaraba for the financial 
year 2024-25. I express my sincere gratitude to the 
Government of Sindh (GoS), Board of Directors 
and our esteemed shareholders for their 
continued trust and support. In particular, I would 
like to extend deepest thanks to the Secretary 
Finance, Government of Sindh (GoS), for his 
invaluable guidance and consistent support 
throughout the year, which has played a pivotal 
role in our strategic direction and operational 
progress. I would also like to express heartfelt 
appreciation to the entire team of Sindh 
Modaraba for their hard work, professionalism, 
and dedication for upholding Islamic values in all 
business practices.

Alhamdulillah, the financial year 2024-25 was a 
period of sustained growth and improvement for 
Sindh Modaraba, with a substantial decrease in 
non-performing loans (NPLs). We successfully 
enhanced our Murabaha and Diminishing 
Musharakah portfolios, resulting in a significant 
increase in total Shariah-compliant disbursements, 
which increased four times as compared to the 
previous year. This growth reflects our prudent 
marketing, risk and compliance strategies and a 
strong demand for Riba-free financial solutions.

It is pertinent to note that despite 50% reduction 
in policy rate by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) 
during the period under review, Sindh Modaraba 
has demonstrated positive financial standing.

This was made possible through a strategic 
increase in disbursements over the previous year 
and a significant reduction in NPLs, effectively 
mitigating the pressure on earnings.

Our business strategy for the coming year will 
focus on geographical expansion, digital 
transformation, and customer-centric solutions. 
We aim to introduce new financing products 
catering to SMEs, renewable energy, and 
agri-based enterprises. In addition, we are 
investing in information technology to streamline 
operational efficiency, ethical governance, and 
compliance with Shariah principles will remain the 
foundation of our approach. 

Looking ahead, we remain committed to our 
mission of providing value-driven Islamic financial 
services while supporting sustainable economic 
growth in Sindh province and beyond. I am 
confident that with the continued support of our 
stakeholders, the guidance of our Board of 
Directors, and the dedication of our team, Sindh 
Modaraba will reach greater heights in the years 
to come.

Thank you once again for your continued faith in 
Sindh Modaraba.

Abdul Rauf Chandio
Chief Executive Officer
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Directors’ Report

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Sindh Modaraba Management Limited, we are presenting the 11th annual report
of Sindh Modaraba together with Audited Accounts for the year ended June 30, 2025.

1. Economy
It is with a sense of both challenges and cautious optimism that we present the Directors' Report for the financial
year ended June 30, 2025. This past year has been a period of significant economic adjustments and resilience, both
for our nation and for our Company. As we navigate the complexities of the global and domestic landscape, it is
imperative to provide you with a comprehensive overview of Pakistan's economic performance over the last twelve
months and our outlook for the future.

The fiscal year 2024-25 presented a mixed bag of economic indicators for Pakistan, characterized by persistent efforts
towards macroeconomic stabilization amidst lingering domestic and external pressures.
a) Economic Growth (GDP): Pakistan's economy experienced subdued growth during the period, largely due to

stringent fiscal and monetary policies aimed at curbing inflation and managing the current account deficit. While
initial projections were modest, the actual growth rate remained constrained, reflecting the necessary slowdown
to address structural imbalances. Key sectors like large-scale manufacturing faced headwinds from high
input costs and reduced consumer demand, though the agricultural sector showed some resilience, providing
a crucial buffer. Real growth reached approximately 2.5% in FY 2023–24, rising modestly to 2.7% in FY
2024–25, slightly outperforming IMF forecasts (2.6%) but still well below government targets of ~3.5–4%.

b) Inflation: Inflation remained a dominant challenge throughout the year, with the Consumer Price Index (CPI)
hovering in double-digits for much of the period. This elevated inflation was primarily driven by global commodity
price volatility, particularly energy and food, coupled with the impact of currency depreciation and supply-side
disruptions. The State Bank of Pakistan cut interest rates sharply—from around 22% in mid-2024 to ~11% by
mid-2025—to support economic recovery. From a peak above 30% in 2023, inflation cooled significantly—to
4.6% annual average in FY 2024–25—and was projected around 4.7% by the government, though the IMF
forecast was slightly higher at 5.1%

c) Exchange Rate Stability: The Pakistani Rupee (PKR) experienced periods of volatility, particularly in the first half
of the fiscal year, before showing signs of relative stability towards the latter part. This stabilization was largely
attributable to improved foreign exchange inflows, including tranches from the International Monetary Fund
(IMF) program and support from friendly countries, coupled with administrative measures to curb speculative
activities. However, the underlying pressure on the balance of payments continued to necessitate careful
management.

d) Fiscal Management: The government continued its arduous journey of fiscal consolidation. Efforts were intensified
to broaden the tax base, reduce non-development expenditures, and rationalize subsidies. Despite these
measures, the fiscal deficit remained a concern, necessitating continued reliance on borrowing. The focus on
revenue mobilization through various tax reforms and improved collection mechanisms was evident, but the
gap between revenue and expenditure persisted. The fiscal gap narrowed to approximately 2.6% of GDP, down
from the ~3.7% reported mid-2025. Nearly half of government revenue in 2025–26 is earmarked for debt
servicing.

e) Current Account Deficit & Foreign Exchange Reserves: Significant progress was made in managing the current
account deficit, primarily through import compression measures and a marginal improvement in exports and
remittances. This combined with multilateral and bilateral financial support, helped in a gradual rebuilding of
foreign exchange reserves. While reserves remained at a level requiring prudent management, the trend was
positive compared to the preceding year, alleviating immediate external financing pressures. The external debt
repayment burden for FY 2025–26 is over $23 billion (PKR 6.5 trillion). Pakistan posted a $1.9 billion surplus
in the current account from July 2024 to April 2025—compared to a deficit of $200 million the year before.
However, reserves remain fragile, and rollover borrowing continues. Moreover, in September 2024, Pakistan
secured a $7 billion IMF bailout, supplemented by new bilateral loans and rollover support (e.g. China rolled
over $2 billion in March 2025).

f) Energy Sector: The energy sector continued to pose structural challenges, including circular debt and the need
for sustainable energy solutions. While efforts were made to improve energy supply and reduce line losses, the
cost of energy remained a significant burden on both industries and consumers, impacting overall economic
competitiveness.

g) Performance of the Financial Sector and Non-Bank Financial Institutions
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(i) In line with the improved macroeconomic and financial conditions in CY24, the overall financial sector demonstrated
impressive performance and maintained its resilience. According to the State Bank of Pakistan's (SBP) Financial
Stability Review for 2024, the financial sector grew at a decent pace of 17.8% during the year. This growth was
supported by receding inflationary pressures, significant monetary easing, and a stable exchange rate.

(ii) Within this environment, the non-bank financial sector presented a mixed performance. Non-Bank Financial
Institutions (NBFIs) as a whole manifested a remarkable expansion. The NBFI sector's asset share in the financial
system, which is predominated by the banking sector, improved from approximately 5.8% in CY23 to 8.9% in
CY24. Overall, the NBFI sector posted an impressive asset growth of 80.0% in CY24, a significant jump from the
34.5% growth recorded in CY23. Major push for this growth came from asset management segment with 89.1
% share in the NBFI sector.

(iii) The lending segment of the NBFIs, which includes Modarabas, registered a strong growth of 89.4% in CY24. This
revival was primarily driven by the declining interest rates in the latter half of the year and the extension of credit
lines from banks. However, a closer look at the Modaraba segment reveals a more nuanced position. The sector's
asset base grew by a marginal 1.2% in CY24, contrasting with the contraction of 14.1% it faced in CY23. On a
positive note, the advances portfolio within the Modaraba sector experienced a strong growth of approximately
46%, reaching Rs 12 billion in CY24. This growth in advances was supported by the favorable interest rate
environment and signals a revival in lending activities, which is a key function of modaraba business.

2. Operating Results and Business Overview

The Modaraba earned a net profit after tax of Rs. 180.12 million during the year under review as compared to a net
profit after tax of Rs. 201.33 million earned during the year ended June 30, 2024. SBP has decreased its policy rate
of about 50% during the current year which impacted the profits. Sindh Modaraba has shown remarkable progress
in FY 2024-25, achieving significant growth in its core business areas along with substantial decrease in non-performing
loans (NPL’s). Our total disbursement during the period increased four times over the preceding year i.e. Rs.1.518
billion, reflecting strong demand for our Shariah-compliant financing products and growing confidence among our
customers. We have also made commendable improvements in asset quality, with a strong risk mitigation tools and
strategies. To compete the market players, we have rigorously strengthen our core team especially marking team to
achieve the organization’s objectives which impacted the operating expense of about 35.41% against favorable increase
in Islamic Financing Portfolio of about 124.18% since last year, which will also be reflected in next financial year.

The operating results for the year ending June 30, 2025, are summarized in the table below:

June 30, 2025 June 30, 2024
----------------Rupees----------------

Balance Sheet
Certificate capital 450,000,000 450,000,000
Total equity 1,991,508,632 1,867,309,901
Diminishing Musharaka Finance 1,443,666,943 738,913,158
Murabaha Finance 212,819,445 -

Profit & Loss
Revenues 341,799,466 407,340,786
Operating expenses 87,438,400 64,572,249
Profit before management fee 267,098,316 346,316,807
Profit before tax 236,382,009 306,490,374
Profit after tax 180,113,788 201,330,520
Appropriations
Profit distribution @ of 13.50% (2024: 12.50%) 60,750,000 56,250,000
Statutory Reserve 36,022,758 40,266,104

Earning per Certificate 4.00 4.47
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3. Outlook
Looking ahead, the economic trajectory of Pakistan appears to be at a critical juncture, with several factors poised
to shape its performance. Our outlook is one of cautious optimism, contingent upon sustained policy reforms and
a more stable geopolitical environment.

a) Continuation of the IMF Program & Structural Reforms: The successful completion of the ongoing IMF program
and the potential for a new, extended program will be pivotal. This will not only unlock further external financing
but also provide the necessary policy discipline to undertake deeper structural reforms. These reforms are crucial
for enhancing productivity, improving the business environment, and attracting long-term foreign direct
investment. We anticipate a continued focus on fiscal consolidation, energy sector reforms, and privatization
of loss-making state-owned enterprises.

b) Inflation Trajectory: We foresee a gradual moderation in inflation, albeit remaining above the State Bank's long-
term target in the near term. As global commodity prices stabilize and domestic supply chains improve, the
pressure on consumer prices is expected to ease. This could potentially create room for a gradual easing of
monetary policy, leading to a reduction in interest rates, which would be beneficial for industrial growth and
private sector borrowing.

c) Exchange Rate Stability and External Sector: The stability of the Pakistani Rupee will largely depend on sustained
foreign exchange inflows, a disciplined current account management, and investor confidence. We expect
continued efforts to boost exports through diversification and market access initiatives. Remittances from
overseas Pakistanis are likely to remain a significant source of foreign exchange. A stable and predictable exchange
rate environment is crucial for business planning and attracting foreign investment.

d) Growth Revival: With macroeconomic stability gaining traction, we anticipate a gradual revival in economic
growth. This growth will likely be driven by increased private sector investment, particularly if interest rates
soften and business confidence improves. The agricultural sector is expected to continue its positive contribution,
while the industrial and services sectors will benefit from improved energy supply and a more conducive policy
environment. Targeted interventions to support small and medium enterprises (SMEs) will also be vital for job
creation and inclusive growth.

e) Investment Climate: Improving the investment climate remains a top priority. Efforts to streamline regulatory
processes, ensure policy consistency, and enhance the ease of doing business are essential. The Special Investment
Facilitation Council (SIFC) is expected to play a crucial role in attracting investments, particularly from Gulf
countries, in key sectors such as agriculture, mining, IT, and energy. Our Company is actively exploring avenues
to leverage these opportunities.

f) Financial Sector: Based on the State Bank of Pakistan's Financial Stability Review 2024, the outlook for the
financial sector in Pakistan remains positive, with a sustained focus on resilience. The banking sector, in particular,
is projected to remain robust and is expected to maintain its resilience during the coming years.

g) Social and Human Development: Beyond economic indicators, there is a growing recognition of the need for
inclusive growth that addresses social development challenges. Investments in education, healthcare, and skill
development will be critical for building a productive workforce and ensuring long-term sustainable development.

Challenges Ahead: Despite the positive outlook, significant challenges persist. These include the ongoing need for
fiscal discipline, managing geopolitical risks, adapting to climate change impacts on agriculture, and ensuring political
stability. The global economic slowdown and potential shifts in international trade dynamics also present external
risks that require vigilant monitoring.

The past year has tested our collective resilience, and our Company, like many others, has adapted to the evolving
economic landscape. We remain committed to prudent financial management, operational efficiency, and strategic
growth initiatives that align with the national economic direction. We believe that with continued reforms, responsible
governance, and the unwavering support of our stakeholders, Pakistan can achieve a path of sustainable and inclusive
economic growth.

4. Profit distribution

The Board of Directors has approved a cash dividend @ 13.50% (2024:12.50%) i.e. Rs. 1.35 (2024: Rs. 1.25) per
certificate for the year ended 30th June 2025.

As per Modaraba Regulations issued by Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan, every Modaraba may create
reserve fund which shall be credited an amount to reserve fund from after-tax profits or any part thereof.
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The Board of Directors has appropriated Rs. 36,022,758/- (20%) towards the Statutory Reserve.

5. External Annual Audit

The financial statements of Modaraba have been audited without any qualification by the auditors namely M/s.
Grant Thornton Anjum Rehman, Chartered Accountants.

6. Corporate Governance

The Modaraba is required to comply with the various requirements of the Public Sector Companies (Corporate
Governance) Rules, 2013 (Rules) as well as Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2019 (the
CCG) issued by the SECP.

The statutory auditors are also required to issue their review report on the compliance statement of the best
practices, which is published with the financial statements.

The Board of Directors has reviewed the CCG and Rules and confirms that:

l The Board has consistently complied with the relevant principles of corporate governance.

l Financial statements, prepared by the management, present fairly the state of affairs, the results of its operations,
cash flows and change in equity.

l Proper books of account have been maintained.

l Appropriate accounting policies have been applied in preparation of financial statements and accounting
estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

l The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.

l The appointment of chairman and other members of the Board and the terms of their appointment are in the
best interests of the Modaraba as well as in line with the best practices.

l The board has elected an independent director in compliance with the rules.

l International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable to Modarabas in Pakistan, have been followed in
preparation of financial statements and any departure there from has been adequately disclosed and explained.

l There are no statutory payments on account of taxes, duties, levies and charges which are outstanding as on
June 30, 2025, except for those disclosed in financial statements.

l The value of Investment in Employees Provident Fund based on financial statements of the Fund as of June 30,
2025 is Rs. 19.508 million (2024: Rs. 14.558 million).

l Key operating and financial data of last six years is annexed.

l Five Board Meetings of the Modaraba Company were held during the year. Attendance of each director is
appended hereunder:

Name of Director Number of Meetings Attended

Mr. Waseem Mehdi Syed 05

Mr. Fayaz Ahmed Jatoi 02

Mr. Ejaz Akhtar Ansari 05

Mr. Sami ul Haq Khilji 05

Mr. Kamal Ahmed 05

Mr. Abdul Rauf Chandio 05

Ms. Naila Asad Shaikh 05
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l Five Audit Committee meetings of the Modaraba Company were held during the year under review.
Attendance of each member is appended hereunder:

Name of Directors No. of Meetings attended

Mr. Waseem Mehdi Syed 5
Mr. Ejaz Akhtar Ansari 5
Mr. Sami ul Haq Khilji 5
Mr. Kamal Ahmed 5

l One Human Resource Committee Meeting of the Modaraba Company was held during the year under
review. Attendance of each member is appended hereunder:

Name of Directors No. of Meetings attended

Mr. Waseem Mehdi Syed 1
Mr. Abdul Rauf Chandio 1
Mr. Sami ul Haq Khilji 1

l Two Risk Management Committee Meetings of the Modaraba Company were held during the year
under review. Attendance of each member is appended hereunder:

Name of Directors No. of Meetings attended

Mr. Waseem Mehdi Syed 2
Mr. Abdul Rauf Chandio 2
Ms. Naila Asad Shaikh 2

l The Board has also established a Procurement Committee and Nomination Committee as required
under the Rules. However, no meeting of these committees were held during the year as per applicable
rules.

l The pattern of certificate holding is annexed to this report.

l The Directors, CEO, Executives, and their spouses and minor children did not carry out any transaction
in the certificates of the Modaraba during the year.

7. The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors has been elected in October 2023 and there is no change in the composition of
the Board, however, the Board's committee have been re-constituted during the year as per the applicable
regulatory requirements.

8. Principal Risk & Mitigation

The risk management government starts with the Board and is associated with a robust management
structure, advanced information and risk rating system along with well-developed risk governance policies.
The Board ensures the assessment of principal risk faced by SM and level of tolerance by providing
guidance to the management in the prescribed manner.

9. Board's Statement on Strategic Objectives for ESG and Sustainability Reporting

Sindh Modaraba has reinforced its dedication to Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG) principles
and sustainability, with strategic objectives firmly anchored in creating long-term value for stakeholders.
Our commitment is reflected in the integration of responsible business practices that are aligned with
globally recognized sustainability standards.
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Our ESG and sustainability framework is comprehensive, underpinned by ethical governance, social
responsibility, and environmental stewardship. ESG considerations are embedded across our core business
strategies, ensuring these principles are not only upheld but actively drive our decision-making processes.

This strategic evolution is informed by the latest regulatory developments and best practices in ESG,
sustainability, and climate-related risk management. Guided by our foundational Shariah values-which
promote fairness, transparency, and accountability-we are embedding ESG across all facets of our
operations to ensure alignment with our values and stakeholder expectations.

The Board remains fully committed to advancing these priorities, continuously refining our approach in
response to evolving stakeholder needs and contributing positively to the broader community and
environment. We believe that our ESG and sustainability initiatives not only reflect our organizational
ethos but also position Sindh Modaraba as a forward-looking leader in responsible and sustainable
business.

9.1 Minimizing Environmental Impact:

This priority includes responsible resource management, waste reduction, and water conservation.
Recognizing the ongoing efforts needed to support the transition to a low-carbon economy, we are
committed to continuous digitalization, particularly to reduce paper usage and conserve electricity
across our offices.

9.2 Corporate Social Responsibility

The Modaraba ensures its role of a Responsible Corporate Citizen by conducting business in line
with its mission incorporating Shariah principles in a socially responsible and ethical manner,
protecting the environment, and supporting the communities and cultures with which it works.

The Modaraba is committed to maintain the highest standards of integrity and corporate governance
practices in order to maintain excellence in its daily operations, and to build-up confidence in its
governance systems.

The Modaraba constantly strives to build trust and demonstrate respect for human dignity and
rights in all relationships, including respect for cultures, customs and values of individuals and
groups.

10. Gender Pay Gap Statement

The board has prepared and included in its annual report, a disclosure statement on Gender Pay Gap
following SECP circular No.10 of 2024 dated 17 April 2024.

11. Credit Rating

VIS Credit Rating Company has maintained long term and short term credit rating of A+ and A-1 respectively
to the Modaraba with a stable outlook.

12. External Auditors

The retiring auditors, M/s Baker Tilly, Mehmood, Idrees, Qamar, Chartered Accountants, have satisfactorily
completed their five-year tenure as external auditors. As per applicable laws, every Public Sector Company
in the financial sector shall change its external auditors every five years.

The Board of Directors and Registrar Modaraba had approved appointment of M/s Grant Thornton Anjum
Rahman, Chartered Accountants as external auditors for the year ending June 30, 2025.

The Board's Audit Committee has recommended the appointment of M/s.Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman,
Chartered Accountants, as external auditors for the year ending June 30, 2026 subject to the approval
of Registrar Modaraba.
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13. Acknowledgment by the Management/Board

The Board would like to thank the SECP, our Shariah Advisor, and NBFI & Modaraba Association for their
continued guidance and support. It would also like to thank the valued customers of the Modaraba for
their trust and support. The Board also wishes to record their appreciation, dedication, and hard work
of the employees of the Modaraba without which it would not have been possible to turn in such an
improved performance.

(On behalf of the Board)

__________________ _______________
Abdul Rauf Chandio Naila Asad Shaikh
Chief Executive Officer Director

Karachi:

18th September 2025
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KEY OPERATING & FINANCIAL DATA

2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

19

Balance Sheet

Certificate capital 450,000,000 450,000,000 450,000,000 450,000,000 450,000,000 450,000,000

Reserves 541,508,632 417,309,901 272,367,212 195,948,970 175,056,964 159,974,420

Total equity 1,991,508,632 1,867,309,901 1,722,367,212 1,645,948,970 1,625,056,964 1,609,974,420

Total Assets 2,064,807,384 1,938,202,289 1,778,233,492 1,684,584,728 1,657,153,740 1,706,170,652

Financing Portfolio 1,704,531,304 791,724,335 919,465,142 901,928,698 859,574,172 816,236,706

Non-performing loans 62,045,990 98,838,656 133,486,060 110,748,423 120,753,848 55,286,568

Provision (excluding general) 39,831,367 49,346,749 51,740,324 54,264,776 41,267,560 27,643,292

Current Assets 1,341,458,400 1,516,515,930 1,280,808,047 1,173,981,336 1,200,357,149 1,177,337,968

Current Liabilities 73,298,752 70,892,388 55,866,280 38,635,758 32,096,776 96,195,232

Total Liabilities 73,298,752 70,892,388 55,866,280 38,635,758 32,096,776 96,196,232

Profit & Loss

Revenue (net of IJR dep & DM susp.) 341,799,466 407,340,786 279,664,809 167,021,948 138,244,547 188,071,755

Operating expenses 87,438,400 64,572,249 64,092,024 40,887,729 46,442,770 39,222,816

(Reversal) / Provision (4,766,261) (2,862,098) (2,547,401) 13,259,015 13,513,618 28,150,551

Profit before management fee 267,098,316 346,316,807 219,363,097 113,522,169 78,624,804 124,111,038

Profit before tax 236,382,009 306,490,374 194,575,067 100,694,164 75,822,337 107,884,760

Profit after tax 180,113,788 201,330,520 130,410,860 66,313,222 75,822,337 107,884,760

Appropriations

Profit distribution (%) 13.50% 12.50% 12.50% 12.00% 10.00% 13.50%

Profit distribution 60,750,000 56,250,000 56,250,000 54,000,000 45,000,000 60,750,000

Statutory Reserve 36,022,758 40,266,104 26,082,172 13,262,644 26,537,818 43,153,904

Financial Ratios

Earning per Certificate 4.00 4.47 2.90 1.47 1.68 2.40

Net profit ratio before tax (%) 69.16% 75.24% 69.57% 60.29% 54.85% 57.36%

Net profit ratio after tax (%) 52.70% 49.43% 46.63% 39.70% 54.85% 57.36%

NPL ratio 3.64% 12.48% 14.52% 12.28% 14.05% 6.77%

NPL cover ratio 64.20% 49.93% 38.76% 49.00% 34.17% 50.00%

P/E Ratio 3.14 2.30 2.77 4.76 5.22 3.42

Breakup Value 22.03 19.27 16.05 14.35 13.89 13.55

Debt ratio (%) 3.55% 3.66% 3.14% 2.29% 1.94% 5.64%

Current ratio 18.30 21.39 22.93 30.39 37.40 12.24

Earning asset to total asset (%) 97.28% 95.19% 93.52% 94.48% 92.08% 95.61%

Return on asset (%) 9.00% 10.83% 7.53% 3.97% 4.51% 6.45%

Return on equity (%) 9.34% 11.22% 7.74% 4.05% 4.69% 8.07%

Debt Equity (%) 3.68% 3.80% 3.24% 2.35% 1.98% 5.98%



All praise is due to Almighty Allah, the Lord of the Worlds. May peace and blessings be upon His last
and final Prophet, Muhammad ( ), his family, companions, and those who follow them with
righteousness until the Day of Judgment.

Sindh Modaraba is a perpetual, multi-dimensional, non-trading Modaraba formed under the
Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980. It is managed by
Sindh Modaraba Management Limited, wholly owned by the Government of Sindh. The Modaraba
primarily operates in Ijarah, Musharakah, Diminishing Musharakah, Murabaha financing, investments
in marketable securities, and related activities.

Basis of Review

During the year ended June 30, 2025, I have reviewed the overall operations, policies, and transactions
of Sindh Modaraba. This review was conducted in light of: Shariah Governance Regulations, 2023
and S.R.O.2310(I)/2022 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP);
relevant Shariah standards and rulings; and guidance and approvals issued by the Shariah Advisor.

The scope of review included financing products, contracts and documentation, investment activities,
financial arrangements, policies and manuals, and related processes.

An external Shariah audit was also conducted during the year in line with SECP’s regulations, which
further strengthened independent assurance on Sindh Modaraba’s Shariah compliance environment.

Observations and Certification

Based on the review, information provided, and explanations obtained from management, I am of
the opinion that:

a) The transactions, documentation, and procedures adopted by Sindh Modaraba during the year
were, in my opinion, in accordance with Shariah principles, the guidance of the Shariah Advisor,
SCSAM 2012, and the Shariah Governance Regulations, 2023;

b) The affairs of the Modaraba were carried out in conformity with Shariah principles and rules,
applicable regulatory requirements, and in line with the Shariah opinions and approvals issued
from time to time;

c) No earnings from sources or means prohibited by Shariah were identified during the year;
hence, no transfer to a charity account was required.

Additionally, I further certify that;

l All bank accounts were maintained with Islamic Banking Institutions (IBIs) or Islamic Banking
Branches of conventional banks under Shariah approval;

l No Shariah non-compliance events of material nature were observed. Minor observations, if
any, were rectified in line with Shariah guidelines.

Therefore, I certify that the overall operations and activities of Sindh Modaraba for the financial
year ended June 30, 2025, were conducted in accordance with Shariah principles and applicable
regulatory requirements.

Shariah Review Report
for the Financial Year Ended June 2025
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Recommendations

While certifying the above, I recommend the following for further strengthening Shariah compliance
and development of Islamic finance within the institution:

l Introduction of new Shariah-compliant financing products to diversify offerings, supported by
staff training (internal and external).

l Extension of Diminishing Musharakah-based staff facilities (housing and vehicle finance) with
incorporation in relevant policies and manuals.

l Provision of staff benefits such as Shariah-compliant financing, comprehensive Takaful coverage,
and Islamic provident fund facilities.

l Increased frequency of Shariah awareness and training sessions for staff and customers to
enhance understanding and adoption of Islamic finance.

Conclusion

I have found nothing contrary to Shariah principles and applicable laws in all material respects. I
pray to Allah Almighty for the continued success, growth, and prosperity of Sindh Modaraba, and
for steadfastness in adherence to His commands.

Mufti Syed Zahid Siraj
Shariah Advisor
Sindh Modaraba

Signed at Karachi I August 22, 2025

The Shariah Review Report has been issued in compliance with the Shariah Governance Regulations, 2023 vide its Clause
23 and Sub Clause (2) for the FY ended June 30, 2025.
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Statement of Compliance with the
Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance)

Rules, 2013 & Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulation 2019

This statement is being presented to comply with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2019 and
Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules 2013 (the Rules) for the purpose of establishing a framework of good
governance, whereby a public sector company is managed in compliance with the best practices of corporate governance for
the year ended June 30, 2025.

The Board of Directors of Sindh Modaraba Management Limited - the Modaraba Management Company (the Management
Company) is responsible for management of affairs of Sindh Modaraba (the Modaraba). The Management Company has complied
with the provisions of the Rules in the following manner:

S. No. Provision of the Rules
Rule
No.

Y N

The independent directors meet the criteria of independence, as defined under the
Rules.

The Board has at least one-third of its total members as independent directors.
At present, the Board includes:

1.

2.

2(d)

3(2)

Category Names
Date of

Appointment

Independent
Directors

Chief Executive
Officer/Executive Director

Non-Executive
Directors

Waseem Mehdi Syed
Ejaz Akhtar Ansari

Abdul Rauf Chandio

Kamal Ahmed
Naila Asad Shaikh
Fayaz Ahmed Jatoi
Sami ul Haq Khilji

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than
five public sector companies and listed companies simultaneously, except their
subsidiaries.

The appointing authorities have applied the fit and proper criteria given in the Annexure
to the Rules in making nominations of the persons for election as Board members
under the provisions of the Act.

The chairman of the Board is working separately from the chief executive of the
Company.

The chairman has been elected by the Board of directors.

The Board has evaluated the candidates for the position of the chief executive on the
basis of the fit and proper criteria as well as the guidelines specified by the Commission.

(a) The company has prepared a "Code of Conduct" to ensure that professional
standards and corporate values are in place.

(b) The Board has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate
it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures,
including posting the same on the company's website. (www.sindhmodarabaltd.com)

(c) The Board has set in place adequate systems and controls for the identification
and redressal of grievances arising from unethical practices.

The Board has established a system of sound internal control, to ensure compliance
with the fundamental principles of probity and propriety; objectivity, integrity and
honesty; and relationship with the stakeholders, in the manner prescribed in the Rules.

26 November 2020
23 October 2023

09 July 2024

15 August 2017
18 August 2023

07 May 2024
30 May 2022

Tick the relevant box

3

3

3(5)

3(7)

4(1)

4(4)

5(2)

5(4)

5(5)

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3
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Y N

The Board has developed and enforced an appropriate conflict of interest policy to
lay down circumstances or considerations when a person may be deemed to have
actual or potential conflict of interests, and the procedure for disclosing such interest.

The Board has developed and implemented a policy on anti- corruption to
minimize actual or perceived corruption in the company.

The Board has ensured equality of opportunity by establishing open and fair procedures
for making appointments and for determining terms and conditions of service.

The Board has ensured compliance with the law as well as the company's internal
rules and procedures relating to public procurement, tender regulations, and
purchasing and technical standards, when dealing with suppliers of goods and
services.

The Board has developed a vision or mission statement and corporate strategy of
the company.

The Board has developed significant policies of the company. A complete record of
particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they were approved
or amended, has been maintained.

The Board has quantified the outlay of any action in respect of any service delivered
or goods sold by the Company as a public service obligation, and has submitted its
request for appropriate compensation to the Government for consideration.

The Board has ensured compliance with policy directions requirements received from
the Government.

a) The Board has met at least four times during the year.

b) Written notices of the Board meetings, along with agenda and working papers,
were circulated at least seven days before the meetings.

c) The minutes of the meetings were appropriately recorded and circulated.

The Board has monitored and assessed the performance of senior management on
annual basis and held them accountable for accomplishing objectives, goals and key
performance indicators set for this purpose.

The Board has reviewed and approved the related party transactions placed before
it after recommendations of the audit committee. A party wise record of transactions
entered into with the related parties during the year has been maintained.

a) The Board has approved the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive
income for, and statement of financial position as at the end of, the first, second
and third quarter of the year as well as the financial year end.

b) In case of listed PSCs, the Board has prepared half yearly accounts and undertaken
limited scope review by the auditors.

c) The Board has placed the annual financial statements on the company's website.

All the Board members underwent an orientation course arranged by the company
to apprise them of the material developments and information as specified in the
Rules.

a) The Board has formed the requisite committees, as specified in the Rules.

b) The committees were provided with written term of reference defining their duties,
authority and composition.

c) The minutes of the meetings of the committees were circulated to all the Board
members.

d) The committees were chaired by the following non-executive directors:

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

5(5)(b)
(ii)

5(5)(b)
(vi)

5(5)(c)
(ii)

5(5)(c)
(iii)

5(6)

5(7)

5(8)

5(11)

6(1)

6(2)

6(3)

8 (2)

9

10

11

12

Tick the relevant box

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

S. No. Provision of the Rules
Rule
No.

3

3

3

3

N/A

N/A

3

3

3

3

3
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Y N

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

Tick the relevant box

3

The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary
and Chief Internal Auditor, by whatever name called, with their remuneration and
terms and conditions of employment.

The Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary have requisite qualification
prescribed in the Rules.

The company has adopted International Financial Reporting Standards notified by
the Commission in terms of sub-section (1) of section 225 of the Act.

The directors' report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the requirements
of the Act and the Rules and fully describes the salient matters required to be disclosed.

The directors, CEO and executives, or their relatives, are not, dire ctly or indirectly,
concerned or interested in any contract or arrangement entered into by or on behalf
of the company except those disclosed to the company.

a) A formal and transparent procedure for fixing the remuneration packages of
individual directors has been set in place and no director is involved in deciding
his own remuneration.

b) The annual report of the company contains criteria and details of remuneration
of each director.

The financial statements of the company were duly endorsed by the chief executive
and chief financial officer before consideration and approval of the audit committee
and the Board.

The Board has formed an audit committee, with defined and written terms of reference,
and having the following members:

13

14

16

17

18

19

20

21 (1)
and
21(2)

21(3)

3

3

S. No. Provision of the Rules
Rule
No.

Audit Committee
Risk Management
Committee
Human Resources
Committee
Procurement Committee
Nomination Committee

3
3

3

3
3

Ejaz Akhtar Ansari
Waseem Mehdi Syed

Waseem Mehdi Syed

Fayaz Ahmed Jatoi
Waseem Mehdi Syed

Committee Number of members Name of Chair

Name of Member Category Professional
Background

Ejaz Akhtar Ansari
Kamal Ahmed
Sami ul Haq Khilji

Independent
Non-executive
Non-executive

Professional Banker
Financial Controller
Federal Govt. representative

The chief executive and chairman of the Board are not members of the audit committee.

a) The chief financial officer, the chief internal auditor, and a representative of the
external auditors attended all meetings of the audit committee at which issues
relating to accounts and audit were discussed.

b) The audit committee met the external auditors, at least once a year, without the
presence of the chief financial officer, the chief internal auditor and other executives.

c) The audit committee met the chief internal auditor and other members of the
internal audit function, at least once a year, without the presence of chief financial
officer and the external auditors.

3

3

3

3

N/A

3

3

3
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a) The Board has set up an effective internal audit function, which has an audit
charter, duly approved by the audit committee.

b) The chief internal auditor has requisite qualification and experience prescribed
in the Rules.

c) The internal audit reports have been provided to the external auditors for their
review.

The external auditors of the company have confirmed that the firm and all its partners
are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on
Code of Ethics as applicable in
Pakistan.

The auditors have confirmed that they have observed applicable guidelines issued
by IFAC with regard to provision of non-audit Services.

22

23(4)

23(5)

Tick the relevant box

333.

34.

35. 3

S. No. Provision of the Rules
Rule
No.

3

3

3

Certain Additional Disclosures as Required under Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

• The total number of Directors as on 30 June 2025 are seven as per the following:

Male: 6

Female: 1

• All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by the Board/
shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations.

• The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the Board
for this purpose.

• The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the Quality
Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board
of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines
on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the
firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, head of internal audit, Company Secretary or Director of the Company.

• The Statutory Auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except in
accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they
have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

• We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been complied with
except where the requirements are inconsistent with the provisions of Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance)
Rules, 2013.

• According to the Regulation 19 of CCG,

"it is encouraged that all the directors on their Boards have acquired the prescribed certification under any director training
program offered by institutions, local or foreign, that meet the criteria specified by the Commission".

However, out of Seven (7) Board of directors, five (5) Directors have already obtained the above stated certification, the
Remaining Directors have been requested to complete the process of certification in due course of time.

Abdul Rauf Chandio
CEO/Executive Director

Waseem Mehdi Syed
Chairman/Independent Director

26



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S ASSURANCE REPORT
ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE SHARIAH GOVERNANCE

REGULATIONS, 2023
To the Board of Directors of Sindh Modaraba

1. Introduction

We have undertaken a reasonable assurance engagement that the Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan (SECP) has required in terms of its Shariah Governance Regulations, 2023 (the Regulations)
– External Shariah Audit of the Sindh Modaraba (“the Modaraba”) for assessing compliance of the
Modaraba’ financial arrangements, contracts, and transactions having Shariah implications with Shariah
principles for the year ended June 30, 2025. This engagement was conducted by a multidisciplinary
team including assurance practitioners and independent Shariah scholar.

2. Applicable Criteria

The criteria for the assurance engagement, against which the underlying subject matter (financial
arrangements, contracts, and transactions having Shariah implications for the year ended June 30,
2025) is assessed, comprise of the Shariah principles and rules, as defined in the Regulations and
reproduced as under:

(i) Legal and regulatory framework administered by the Commission;

(ii) Shariah standards issued by the Accounting and Auditing Organization for Islamic Financial
Institutions (AAOIFI), as notified by the Commission;

(iii) Islamic Financial Accounting Standards, developed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan, as notified by the Commission;

(iv) Guidance and recommendations of the Shariah advisory committee, as notified by the Commission;
and

(v) Approvals, rulings or pronouncements of the Shariah Supervisory Board or the Shariah advisor
of the Islamic financial institution, in line with (i) to (iv) above.

3. Management’s Responsibility for Shariah Compliance

Management is responsible to ensure that the financial arrangements, contracts and transactions
having Shariah implications, entered into by the Modaraba with its customers, unit holders, other
financial institutions and stakeholders and related policies and procedures are, in substance and in
their legal form, in compliance with the requirements of Shariah rules and principles. The management
is also responsible for design, implementation and maintenance of appropriate internal control
procedures with respect to such compliance and maintenance of relevant accounting records.

4. Our Independence and Quality Control

We have complied with the independence and other ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics for
Chartered Accountants issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, which is founded
on fundamental principles of integrity, objectivity, professional competence and due care, confidentiality
and professional behavior.

The firm applies International Standard on Quality Management 1 “Quality Management for Firms
That Perform Audits or Reviews of Financial Statements, or Other Assurance or Related Services
Engagements” which requires the firm to design, implement and operate a system of quality management
including policies or procedures regarding compliance with ethical requirements, professional standards
and applicable legal and regulatory requirements.
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5. Our responsibility and summary of the work performed

Our responsibility in connection with this engagement is to express an opinion on compliance of the
Modarba’s financial arrangements, contracts, and transactions having Shariah implications with
Shariah principles, in all material respects, for the year ended June 30, 2025, based on the evidence
we have obtained. We conducted our reasonable assurance engagement in accordance with
International Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000, ‘Assurance Engagements other than audits
or reviews of historical financial statements’, issued by the International Auditing and Assurance
Standards Board. That standard requires that we plan and perform this engagement to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the compliance of the Modaraba’s financial arrangements,
contracts, and transactions having Shariah implications with Shariah principles is free from material
misstatement.

The procedures selected by us for the engagement depended on our judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material non-compliance with the Shariah principles. In making those risk
assessments, we considered and tested the internal control relevant to the Modaraba’s compliance
with the Shariah principles in order to design procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Modaraba’s internal
control. We have designed and performed necessary verification procedures on various financial
arrangements, contracts and transactions having Shariah implications and related policies and
procedures based on judgmental and systematic samples with regard to the compliance of Shariah
principles.

We believe that the evidences we have obtained through performing our procedures were sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

6. Conclusion

Based on our reasonable assurance engagement, we report that in our opinion, the Modaraba’
financial arrangements, contracts and transactions for the year ended June 30, 2025, are in compliance
with the Shariah principles, in all material respects.

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman
Chartered Accountants
Karachi

Date: 26 September, 2025

Name of the Engagement Partner: Muhammad Shaukat Naseeb
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE CERTIFICATE HOLDERS OF SINDH MODARABA

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Sindh Modaraba (the "Modaraba"), which comprise
the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2025, and the statement of profit and loss and other
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flow for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy information and other
explanatory information and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which,
to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement
of financial position, statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes
in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the
Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 (XXXI of 1980), in the manner
so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Modaraba's affairs as at June 30,
2025, and of the profit and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the
year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Modaraba and
Modaraba Company (Sindh Modaraba Management Limited) in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants 'Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants' as adopted by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. Following are the key audit matters:

Our audit procedures in respect of this matter
included the following:

1. We assessed and tested the design and operations
of key controls over the recognition, valuation and
existence of financing assets.

2. We performed detailed assessment of the credit
approval procedures of the financings sanctioned
in accordance with Modaraba Companies and
Modarabas (Flotation and Control) Ordinance, 1980
(XXXI of 1980), Modaraba Companies and Modaraba
Rules, 1981 and Modaraba Regulations, 2021 and
performed credit review on sample basis.

S. No. Key Audit Matters How the matters were addressed in our audit

1. Islamic financings assets
(Refer Note 7 and 8 to the financial statements)

Islamic financings assets are valued at
Rs. 1.656 billion which constitutes 80%
of the total assets of the Modaraba.

As the Islamic financings assets
represent a significant element of the
financial statements, a discrepancy in
the existence or valuation could cause
the financial statements to be
materially misstated which would also
impact the Modaraba's reported
performance.
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3. We tested controls over addition, termination and
periodic valuation of the portfolios and performed
other substantive audit procedures on the year end
balances. Moreover, we have reviewed documentation
required in the facilities files of the parties and verified
income from financing during the year by performing
recalculation through amortization schedules on a
sample basis.

4. In addition, we have checked repayment received
from the clients on sample basis.

5. We have assessed the ECL model used by the
management to calculate the provision against
financings of the Modaraba for appropriateness of
the assumptions used and the methodology applied.
We also tested the mathematical accuracy of the
model.

6. We have evaluated management's assessment for
classification of customer's financing facilities as
required by Schedule-III of Modaraba Regulations
2021.

7. We also evaluated the adequacy of the overall
disclosures in the financial statements in respect of
financings issued and related assets in accordance
with the requirements of the applicable financial
reporting framework NBFC Regulations and with the
applicable accounting standards, provisions of and
directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 and
requirement of Modaraba Companies and Modarabas
(Flotation and Control) Ordinance, 1980, Modaraba
Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981 and Modaraba
Regulations, 2021.

In view of significance of financings
and related assets in relation to total
assets and the financial statements as
a whole, we have considered the
existence and valuation of financings
as a key audit matter.

2. Revenue Recognition
(Refer Note 3.12 to the financial statements)

Modaraba earnssubstaintial income from
the diminishing musharaka. During the
year, the Modaraba has recognized
income of Rs. 188.6 mill ion on
diminishing musharaka. which represents
55% of total revenue.

We identified income from diminishing
musharaka finances as a key audit matter
as it is one of the key performance
indicators of the Modaraba and because
of the potential risk that income from
diminishing musharaka transactions may
not be accurately recorded, recognized
in the appropriate period, and not
properly disclosed in the financial
statements.

Our audit procedures in respect of this matter included
the following:

1. We obtained an understanding, including the design
and implementation of internal controls over recording
and processing of diminishingmusharaka income.

2. We assessed the appropriateness of the Modaraba's
accounting policy for recording of income and in line
with the requirements of applicable law, accounting
and reporting standards.

3. We matched customer contracts with the income
schedule and performed recalculation on sample basis
to ensure that income is appropriately recorded and
also evaluated that these contracts were appropriately
classified and recorded in the appropriate accounting
period.

4. On sample basis, traced the rentals received from the
underlying records issued to contract holders and
applied substantive analytical procedures to determine
any variations.

5. We also evaluated the adequacy of the overall
disclosures in the financial statements in respect of income
from diminishing musharaka finances in accordance with
the requirements of applicable financial reporting
frameworks.

30



Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement in this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors of the Modaraba for the financial statements

Management of the Modaraba Company is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan
and the requirements of Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980
(XXXI of 1980) and for such internal control as management of the Modaraba Company determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management of the Modaraba is responsible for assessing the
Modaraba's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management of the Modaraba Company either
intends to liquidate the Modaraba or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors of the Modaraba Company are responsible for overseeing the Modaraba's financial
reporting process.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurances about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: -

l Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

l Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Modaraba's internal control;

l Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management of the Modaraba Company;

l Conclude on the appropriateness of the management of the Modaraba Company's use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Modaraba's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Modaraba to
cease to continue as a going concern; and
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l Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors of the Modaraba Company regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors of the Modaraba Company with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors of the Modaraba Company, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Modaraba Company in respect of the Modaraba as
required by the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 (XXXI
OF 1980);

b) the statement of financial position and the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes
thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation
and Control) Ordinance, 1980, (XXXI of 1980) and are in agreement with the books of account;

c) business conducted, investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the
year by the Modaraba were in accordance with the objects, terms and conditions of the Modaraba;
and

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted
by the Modaraba and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance

Other matter

1. The financial statements of the previous year were audited by another firm of auditors who expressed
an unmodified opinion on those financial statements on September 23, 2024.

2. The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Muhammad
Shaukat Naseeb.

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman
Chartered Accountants
Karachi

Date: 26 September, 2025

UDIN: AR202510126KrvZVT8e3
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ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and bank balances 4 371,724,227 202,142,642
Short term investments 5 - 950,000,000
Advances, prepayments and other receivables 6 27,118,670 38,665,098
Morabaha finance 7 212,819,445 -
Current portion of Diminishing Musharaka 8 726,974,570 324,247,982
Current portion of long term advances 522,372 -
Current portion of long term loan 9 2,299,116 1,460,208
Total current assets 1,341,458,400 1,516,515,930

Non - current assets
Diminishing Musharaka 8 716,692,373 414,665,176
Long term loan 9 4,240,649 5,085,621
Long term advances 726,823 -
Fixed assets - in own use 10 1,689,139 1,935,562
Total non - current assets 723,348,984 421,686,359

TOTAL ASSETS 2,064,807,384 1,938,202,289

LIABILITIES AND CERTIFICATE HOLDERS' EQUITY

Current liabilities
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities 11 69,036,102 60,119,321
Payable to gratuity fund 12 1,036,752 1,390,203
Taxation - net 13 2,035,782 8,307,484
Profit distribution payable 1,190,116 1,075,380
TOTAL LIABILITIES 73,298,752 70,892,388

CERTIFICATE HOLDERS' EQUITY

Authorized certificate capital 14 500,000,000 500,000,000

Issued, subscribed and paid-up certificate capital 14 450,000,000 450,000,000
Reserves 15 541,508,632 417,309,901
Long term loan 16 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000

1,991,508,632 1,867,309,901

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2,064,807,384 1,938,202,289

Contingencies and commitments 17

The annexed notes 1 to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For Sindh Modaraba Management Limited (Management Company - Owned by Government of Sindh)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2025

Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial OfficerChairman
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS,
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Income from:
- Diminishing Musharaka 188,683,085 198,029,767
- Murabaha 28,649,809 9,401,425
- Bank deposits 64,232,965 46,006,909
- Term deposit receipts 60,233,607 153,902,685

341,799,466 407,340,786

Administrative and operating expenses 18 (87,438,400) (64,572,249)
Reversal of provision for doubtful receivables - net 19 4,766,261 2,862,098

(82,672,139) (61,710,151)

259,127,327 345,630,635

Other income - net 20 7,970,989 686,172

267,098,316 346,316,807

Modaraba Management Company's remuneration 21 (26,709,832) (34,631,681)
Provision for Sindh Sales Tax on Management Company's remuneration (4,006,475) (5,194,752)

(30,716,307) (39,826,433)

Profit before taxation and levy 236,382,009 306,490,374

Taxation 13 (56,268,221) (105,159,854)

Profit for the year after taxation and levy 180,113,788 201,330,520

Other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year
Actuarial gain / (loss) on defined benefit plan 334,943 (137,831)

Total comprehensive income 180,448,731 201,192,689

Earnings per certificate - basic and diluted 22 4.00 4.47

The annexed notes 1 to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For Sindh Modaraba Management Limited (Management Company - Owned by Government of Sindh)

Note
-------------------- Rupees --------------------

Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial OfficerChairman
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation 236,382,009 306,490,374
Adjustments for non - cash and other items
Depreciation on fixed assets - in own use 10.1 904,042 1,145,834
Amortization of intangible assets 10.2 9,026 24,374
Reversal of provision for doubtful receivables - net 19 (4,766,261) (2,862,098)
Income (reversal) in respect of diminishing musharaka (5,342,128) (4,542,088)
Income on bank deposits (64,232,965) (46,006,909)
Gain on disposal of fixed assets 20 (59,996) -
Income on term deposit receipts (60,233,607) (153,902,685)
Provision for gratuity 1,371,695 1,252,372
Operating losses before working capital changes (132,350,194) (204,891,200)

Working capital changes
Decrease / (increase) in current assets
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 6 3,633,814 8,387,331
Diminishing Musharaka 8 (698,918,080) 121,054,286
Morabaha 7 (213,888,889) -
Long term advances - net (1,249,195) -
Long term loan - net 9 6,064 (4,891,367)

(910,416,286) 124,550,250
Increase in current liabilities
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities 11 8,916,781 16,779,410

Working capital changes (901,499,505) 141,329,660

Income received on term deposit receipts 73,311,479 143,816,598
Income received on bank deposits 64,409,835 49,007,236
Gratuity contribution paid (1,390,203) (1,041,276)
Taxes paid 13 (62,539,923) (107,407,982)

Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities (723,676,502) 327,303,410

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sale proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 10.3 60,000 -
Purchase of fixed assets - owned 10 (666,649) (1,132,927)
Net cash used in investing activities (606,649) (1,132,927)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Profit distributed (56,135,264) (56,104,101)
Net cash used in financing activities (56,135,264) (56,104,101)

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (780,418,415) 270,066,382

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,152,142,642 882,076,260

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 32 371,724,227 1,152,142,642

The annexed notes 1 to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For Sindh Modaraba Management Limited (Management Company - Owned by Government of Sindh)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Note
-------------------- Rupees --------------------

2025 2024

Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial OfficerChairman
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Balance as at July 01, 2023 450,000,000 160,416,320 111,950,892 272,367,212 1,000,000,000 1,722,367,212
Profit for the year ended June 30, 2024 - - 201,330,520 201,330,520 - 201,330,520
Total other comprehensive

income for the year - - (137,831) (137,831) - (137,831)
Transfer to statutory reserve 15.1 - 40,266,104 (40,266,104) - - -

Transaction with owners

Profit distribution for the year
ended June 30, 2023 at Rs. 1.25

(12.50%) per certificate - - (56,250,000) (56,250,000) - (56,250,000)

Balance as at June 30, 2024 450,000,000 200,682,424 216,627,477 417,309,901 1,000,000,000 1,867,309,901

Profit for the year ended June 30, 2025 - - 180,113,788 180,113,788 - 180,113,788

Total other comprehensive income for the year - - 334,943 334,943 - 334,943

Transfer to statutory reserve 15.1 - 36,022,758 (36,022,758) - - -

Transaction with owners

Profit distribution for the year
ended June 30, 2024

at Rs. 1.25 (12.50%) per certificate - - (56,250,000) (56,250,000) - (56,250,000)

Balance as at June 30, 2025 450,000,000 236,705,182 304,803,450 541,508,632 1,000,000,000 1,991,508,632

The annexed notes 1 to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For Sindh Modaraba Management Limited (Management Company - Owned by Government of Sindh)

Issued,
subscribed and

paid-up
share capital

Unappropriated
profit

……………………………………………..… (Rupees) ………………………………………………..

Total equity
and reserves

Total
reserves

Revenue
reserve

Reserve

Long term
loan

Statutory
reserve

Capital
reserveNote

Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial OfficerChairman
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

1. LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Sindh Modaraba (the Modaraba) has been floated under the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba
(Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 and the Rules framed thereunder and is managed by Sindh
Modaraba Management Limited (the Management Company), which is a wholly owned subsidiary of
Government of Sindh. The registered office of the Modaraba is situated at 1st Floor, Imperial Court, Dr.
Ziauddin Ahmed Road, Karachi.

The Modaraba is a perpetual, multi-purpose and multi-dimensional Modaraba and is primarily engaged
in providing Shariah compliant financing facilities to credit worthy customers. The Modaraba is listed on
Pakistan Stock Exchange.
The VIS Credit Rating Company Limited has maintained long term rating of A+ and short term rating of
A-1 to the Modaraba. Outlook on the assigned rating is ‘Stable’.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards
as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), International Accounting Standards (IAS) and
Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFASs), as are notified under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2017; and

Provisions of and directives issued by securities and exchange commission of Pakistan (SECP),
requirement of Modaraba Companies and Modarabas (Flotation and Control) Ordinance, 1980,
Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981, Modaraba Regulations, 2021 and Companies Act,
2017.

- Wherever the requirements of the approved accounting standards differ from the relevant laws, the
relevant laws have been followed.

2.2 Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except otherwise
stated.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Modaraba operates. The financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees,
which is the Modaraba's functional and presentational currency. Figures have been rounded off to the
nearest Rupee, unless stated otherwise.

2.4 Use of significant estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards requires
the management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, income and expenses. It also requires the management to exercise judgment in
application of the Modaraba's accounting policies. The estimates, judgments and associated assumptions
are based on the management's experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. These estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both
the current and future periods. The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to
the Modaraba's financial statements or where judgment was exercised in the application of accounting
policies are as follows:

a) estimates of residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods of fixed assets in own use (note
3.3) and Ijarah assets (note 3.4);
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b) estimates of useful lives and amortization charge for its intangibles (note 3.3.2)

c) certain actuarial assumptions have been adopted as disclosed in these financial statement for actuarial
valuation of present value of defined benefit obligation (note 3.13);

d) investments & loans, advances, prepayments and other receivables (note 3.1 and 3.6); and

e) provision for taxation (note 3.7).

2.5 New and amended standards and interpretations

2.5.1 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are
effective and relevant

New standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations that are mandatory
for the financial year beginning on or after July 01, 2024 are considered not to be relevant or to have
any significant effect on the Modaraba's financial reporting and operations.

Effective date
IAS 21 The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates (Amendments) July 1, 2025

IFRS S1 General Requirements for Disclosure of Sustainability-related
Financial Information July 1, 2025

IFRS S2 Climate-related Disclosures July 1, 2025

2.5.2 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are
not yet effective

The new standard, certain amendments and interpretations that are mandatory for accounting periods
beginning after January 01, 2024 are considered not to be relevant for the Modaraba's financial statements.

Effective date
IFRS 7 Financial instruments : Disclosure January 01, 2026
IFRS 9 Financial instruments January 01, 2026
IAS 21 Lack of exchangeability January 01, 2026

Other than the aforementioned standards, interpretation and amendments, IASB has also issued the
following standards, which have been utilized locally in relation to the Modaraba, by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) as at June 30,2025

Effective date
IFRS1 First time adoption January 01, 2026
IFRS 18 Presentation and disclosure in financial statements January 01, 2027
IFRS 19 Subsidies without public accountability : Disclosures January 01, 2027

The management anticipates the adoption of above standards in future being will have material impact
on financial statements items and presentation/ disclosures.

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

The material accounting policies adopted and applied in the preparation of these financial statements
as set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented unless other wise
stated.

3.1 Financial instruments

3.1.1 Recognition, initial measurement and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Modaraba becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted for
transactions costs, except for those carried at fair value through profit or loss, which are measured initially
at fair value.

Financial assets are derecognized when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or when the financial asset and all substantial r isks and rewards are transferred.
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A financial liability is derecognized when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or has expired.

3.1.2 Subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets at amortized cost
Financial assets are measured at amortized cost if the assets meet the following conditions (and are not
designated as FVTPL):

- they are held within a business model whose objective is to hold the financial assets and collect its
contractual cash flows;

- the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and profit on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial recognition, these are measured at amortized cost using the effective profit rate method.
Discounting is omitted where the effect of discounting is immaterial. The Modaraba’s cash and cash
equivalents and short term investments fall into this category of financial instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Financial assets that are held within a different business model other than ‘hold to collect’ or ‘hold to
collect and sell’ are categorized at fair value through profit and loss. Further, irrespective of business
model financial assets whose contractual cash flows are not solely payments of principal and profit are
accounted for at FVTPL. All financial assets are classified and measured at fair value through profit or
loss unless the Modaraba makes an irrevocable election on initial recognition to present gains and losses
on equity instruments in other comprehensive income.

Despite these requirements, a financial asset may be irrevocably designated as measured at fair value
through profit or loss to reduce the effect of, or eliminate, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
The Modaraba accounts for financial assets at FVOCI if the assets meet the following conditions:

- they are held under a business model whose objective it is “hold to collect and sell""; and

- the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and profit on the principal amount outstanding.

3.1.3 Equity instruments

At initial recognition, the Modaraba may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive
income subsequent changes in the fair value of an investment in an equity instrument within the scope
of this standard that is not held for trading.

Where the Modaraba’s management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains
and losses to the statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on
equity investments measured at FVTOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

Changes in the fair value of equity investments at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in other
income / (other expenses) in the statement profit or loss as applicable.

Dividends from such investments continue to be recognized in the statement of profit and loss as other
income when the Modaraba’s right to receive payments is established.

Any gains or losses on derecognition of financial instruments that is measured at fair value shall be
recognized in the statement of profit and loss unless it is an investment in an equity instrument and the
Modaraba has elected to present gains and losses on that investment in the statement of comprehensive
income.

3.1.4 Impairment of financial assets

IFRS 9’s impairment requirements use more forward-looking information to recognize expected credit
losses – the ‘expected credit loss (ECL) model’. This replaces IAS 39’s ‘incurred loss model’. Instruments
within the scope of the new requirements included loans and other debt-type financial assets measured
at amortized cost and FVTOCI that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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Recognition of credit losses is no longer dependent on the Modaraba first identifying a credit loss event.
Instead the Modaraba considers a broader range of information when assessing credit risk and measuring
expected credit losses, including past events, current conditions, reasonable and supportable forecasts
that affect the expected collectability of the future cash flows of the instrument.

In applying this forward-looking approach, a distinction is made between:

- financial instruments that have not deteriorated significantly in credit quality since initial recognition
or that have low credit risk (‘Stage 1’) and

- financial instruments that have deteriorated significantly in credit quality since initial recognition and
whose credit risk is not low (‘Stage 2’).

Stage 3’ would cover financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date.

12-month expected credit losses’ are recognized for the first category while ‘lifetime expected credit
losses’ are recognized for the second and third category.

Measurement of the expected credit losses is determined by a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses over the expected life of the financial instrument.

3.1.5 Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables, amount due to a related party and borrowings.

Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the effective profit rate method.
Discounting is omitted if the impact is immaterial.

3.1.6 Off-setting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements
only when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

3.2 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at amortized cost. These
include balances with banks in deposit and current accounts, short term investment and stamps in hand.

3.3 Fixed assets - In own use

3.3.1 Tangible assets

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are
included in the assets carrying amounts or recognized as separate assets, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the items will flow to the Modaraba and the
cost of the items can be measured reliably.

All other repairs and maintenance expenses are charged to the statement of profit and loss as and when
incurred. Depreciation on all fixed assets is charged to income on a straight - line basis in accordance
with the specified rates.
The useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting
date. Depreciation is charged on additions from the month the asset is available for use and on disposals
up to the month preceding the month of disposal.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the sale proceeds with the carrying amounts.
These are recorded in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which these arise.

3.3.2 Intangible assets

Intangible assets having a finite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Subsequent costs are included in the assets' carrying amounts or recognized
as separate assets, as appropriate, only where it is probable that the future economic benefits associated
with the assets will flow to the Modaraba and the cost of the items can be measured reliably.
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Amortization is charged to income using the straight line method in accordance with the specified rates.
The useful lives and amortization method are reviewed and adjusted, as appropriate, at each reporting
date. Amortization is charged from the month the asset is available for use while in the case of assets
disposed of, it is charged till the month preceding the month of disposal.

Intangible assets having an indefinite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

Gain or loss on disposal of intangible assets, if any, is taken to the statement of profit and loss in the
period in which these arise.

3.3.3 Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress, if any, is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and represents
expenditure on fixed assets in the course of installation and advances for capital expenditure. Transfers
are made to the relevant category of tangible / intangible assets as and when the assets are available
for intended use.

3.4 Ijarah assets given to customers under agreement

Assets leased out under Ijarah are recorded as Ijarah assets and are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses (if any). Depreciation is charged to income by applying
the straight line method whereby the cost of an asset less salvage value is written off over the lease term,
which is considered to be the estimated useful life of the asset.

- Muj`ir (lessors) presents the assets subject to ijarah in their statement of financial position according
to the nature of the asset, distinguished from the assets in own use.

- Costs, including depreciation on the assets given on ijarah, incurred in earning the ijarah income are
recognized as expenses.

- Initial direct costs incurred specifically to earn revenues from ijarah are recognized as an expense
in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred.

3.5 Murabaha finance

Funds disbursed for purchase of goods are recorded as ‘Advance for Murabaha’. On culmination of
murabaha i.e. sale of goods to customers, murabaha financings are recorded at the deferred sale price.
Goods purchased but remaining unsold at the statement of financial position date are recorded as
inventories. Profit on murabaha financings is recognized on accrual basis. Profit on murabaha transactions
for the period from the date of disbursement to the date of culmination of murabaha is recognized
immediately upon the later date. Profit unearned at statement of financial position date is deferred and
recorded as deferred murabaha income. Financing are stated net of specific and general provisions
against non- performing financings, if any, which are charged to the statement of profit and loss.

3.6 Loans, advances, prepayments and other receivables

These are stated at cost less estimates made for doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding
amounts at the reporting date. Balances considered bad and irrecoverable are written off when identified.

3.7 Taxation

Current
Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income for the year at the current rates of taxation after
taking into account applicable tax credits, rebates and exemptions available, if any.

Deferred
Deferred tax is recognized using the statement of financial position liability method, on all temporary
differences arising between the tax bases and carrying amounts of assets and liabilities appearing in the
financial statements. Deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax asset is recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the future and taxable profits will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilized.
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3.8 Levy

In accordance with Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (Ordinance), computation of final taxes is not based on
taxable income. Therefore, as per IAS 12 Application Guidance on Accounting for Minimum Taxes and
Final Taxes issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), these fall within the
scope of IFRIC 21. There are no material final taxes/levy that fall within the scope of IFRIC 21 during
the year ended June 30, 2025.

3.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Modaraba’s assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment loss. Impairment loss determined as the difference between carrying
value and recoverable amount being higher of asset's fair value less cost to sell and value in use. If such
an indication exists, the assets' recoverable amounts are estimated in order to determine the extent of
impairment loss. The resulting impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

3.9.1 Fair value measurement

The Modaraba measures certain financial instruments, and non-financial assets such as assets classified
as held for sale and investment property, at fair value at each reporting date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal, or in its absence, the
most advantageous market to which the Modaraba has access at that date. The fair value of a liability
reflects the effect of non-performance risk. When applicable, the Modaraba measures the fair value of
an instrument using the quoted price in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as
active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide
pricing information on an ongoing basis.

When measuring fair value, the Modaraba takes into account the characteristics of asset or liability which
include the condition and location of the asset and restrictions, if any, on the sale or use of the asset.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Modaraba uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data is available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use of unobservable inputs.

Valuation techniques used to measure fair value are applied consistently unless a change in a valuation
technique or its application results in a measurement that is equally or more representative of fair value
in the circumstances. Revisions resulting from a change in the valuation technique or its application are
accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within different levels of the fair value hierarchy, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole.

Fair value hierarchy categorizes into following three levels the inputs to valuation techniques used to
measure fair value:

- Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Modaraba can access at the measurement date.

- Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly.

- Level 3 — Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Modaraba has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy, as explained above.
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3.9.2 Creditors, accrued and other liabilities

These are carried at amortized cost, which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future
for goods and services.

3.9.3 Provisions as contingent assets and liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Modaraba has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past obligating events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made.
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent asset, are not recognized and are disclosed unless a inflow of economic benefits are virtually
certain. Contingent liabilities are not recognized and are disclosed unless the probability of an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

3.9.4 Staff retirement benefits

Defined contribution plan - employees provident fund
The Modaraba operates a recognized provident fund for all eligible employees and equal contributions
by the employer and employee to the provident fund are made at the rate of 10% of the basic salaries
of employees.

Defined benefit plan - employees gratuity fund
The Modaraba operates a gratuity fund for all eligible employees who have completed the minimum three
years of service. The fund is administered by the trustee nominated under the Trust Deed. The contributions
to the Fund are made in accordance with the actuarial valuation using Projected Unit Credit Method.
Actuarial gains and losses arising at each valuation date are recognized immediately.

3.9.5 Revenue and other income recognition

The revenue recognition of the Modaraba is based on the following policies:

- For ijarah arrangements, ijarah rentals are recognized as income on accrual basis, as and when
rentals become due. In case of ijarah arrangements with staggered rentals, the income is recognized
on a straight line basis over the ijarah term.

- Income in respect of non-performing ijarah finance is held in suspense account, where necessary,
in accordance with the requirements of the prudential regulations for modarabas issued by the SECP.

- Documentation charges, front end fees and other ijarah related income are taken to the statement
of profit and loss on an accrual basis.

- Profit on diminishing musharaka arrangements is recognized under the effective mark-up rate method
based on the amount outstanding.

- Mark-up / return on deposits / investments is recognized on accrual basis using the effective profit
rate method.

- Other income is recognized on an accrual basis.

- Dividend income

3.9.6 Proposed profit distribution to certificate holders

Dividends declared made subsequent to the reporting date are considered as non-adjusting events and
are recognized in the financial statements in the period in which such dividends are declared.

3.9.7 Earnings per certificate

Basic earnings per certificate is calculated by dividing the profit after taxation for the period by the weighted
average number of certificates outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per certificate is determined
by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary certificate holders by taking into account the
conversion of any dilutive potential ordinary certificates.
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3.9.8 Ordinary certificate

Ordinary certificate, are classified as equity and are recorded at their face value incremental cost directly
attributable to the issue of new certificate as allotments are shown in equity as a deduction net of tax.

3.9.9 Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into Pakistani Rupees at the rate of exchange prevailing
on the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani
Rupees at the rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting date. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates
are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

3.9.10 Segment reporting

As per IFRS 8: "Operating Segments", segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting used by the chief operating decision-maker. The Chief Executive Officer has been identified
as the chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the Modaraba’s
entire product portfolio and considers the business to have a single operating segment.

The Modaraba’s asset allocation decisions are based on a single integrated investment strategy and the
Modaraba’s performance is evaluated on an overall basis.

3.9.11 Related party transactions

All transactions with related party are priced on arm's length basis. Prices of these transactions are
determined on the basis of admissible valuation methods.

3.9.12 Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the Modaraba's right to receive dividend is established.

3.9.13 Ijarah rental receivable

These are stated at amount recoverable net of provision (if any).

3.9.14 Compensated absences

The Modaraba makes provision in the financial statements for its liability towards compensated absences
based on the leaves accumulated up to the statement of financial position date.

3.9.15 Commitments

Commitments are disclosed in the financial statements at committed amount.

4. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Stamp papers in hand 61,900 78,200
Balances with banks:
- on deposit accounts 4.1 369,372,170 200,860,973
- on current accounts 4.2 & 4.3 2,290,157 1,203,469

371,724,227 202,142,642

4.1 These carry profit at rates ranging from 4.00% to 10.50% per annum (2024: 6.75% to 18.80% per annum).
This includes a balance of Rs. 1.73 million (2024: Rs. 1.16 million) held with Sindh Bank Limited - Islamic
Banking Unit, a related party.

4.2 This includes a balance of Rs. 1.07 million (2024: Rs. 1.20 million) held with Sindh Bank Limited - Islamic
Banking Unit, a related party.

4.3 This include bank account maintained by Modaraba with State Bank of Pakistan as per the requirements
of BSD Circular No. 04 of 2003 for recovering CIB service charges having balance of Rs 26,384 (2024:
Rs 3,375).

4.4 All bank accounts used by the modaraba are shariah compliant.

Note
---------------- Rupees -----------------

2025 2024
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Note
---------------- Rupees -------------

2025 2024

5. SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

Term deposit receipts 5.1 - 950,000,000

5.1 Nil investment as at balance sheet date, (June 2024: Rs. 550 million for a period of 3 months maturity
at a mark-up rate of 19.00% per annum and Rs. 400 million for a period of 3 months maturity at a mark-
up rate of 20.50% per annum) in Soneri Bank Limited - Islamic Banking.

6. ADVANCES, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Advances 27,800 26,000
Prepayments 3,024,693 1,289,844
Accrued income from Diminishing Musharaka 6.2 10,792,011 19,517,782
Profit receivable from Morabaha 8,697,432 -
Accrued income from bank deposits 6.1 4,576,734 4,753,604
Accrued income from term deposit receipts - 13,077,868

27,118,670 38,665,098

6.1 This includes accrued income of Rs. 11,112 (2024: Rs. 13,123) on bank deposits held with Sindh Bank
Limited - Islamic Banking Unit, related party.

6.2 Accrued income from Diminishing Musharaka

Receivable 20,794,065 34,861,964
Less: Income suspend (10,002,054) (15,344,182)

10,792,011 19,517,782

7. MURABAHA FINANCE

Receivables 7.1 213,888,889 -
Less: general provision 7.2 (1,069,444) -

212,819,445 -

7.1 This represents the finance provided to corporate clients under murabaha finance for periods of 9 months
(2024: Nil) which was secured against pledge and personal guarantee of a director.

7.2 This represent general provion made at the rate of 0.5% (2024: Nill)

8. DIMINISHING MUSHARAKA

Receivables - secured 8.1 1,490,642,415 791,724,335
Less: Current portion (726,974,570) (324,247,982)
Less: Provision in respect of diminishing musharaka 8.2 (46,975,472) (52,811,177)
Non-current portion 716,692,373 414,665,176

8.1 This represents finance provided to individual and corporate clients under diminishing musharaka
arrangements for periods ranging 3 to 20 years (2024: 3 to 20 years) which is secured against mortgage
of property, lien on title documents and charge on assets etc.

8.2 This includes a general provision of Rs. 7.14 million (2024: Rs. 3.46 million) made at the rate of 0.5%
(2024: 0.5%) on diminishing musharaka receivables respectively.

Note
--------------- Rupees ---------------

2025 2024

Note
---------------- Rupees -------------

2025 2024

Note
---------------- Rupees -------------

2025 2024



General

Opening 3,465,550 49,345,627 52,811,177 3,932,951 51,740,324 55,673,275
Charge for the year 3,678,555 6,860,388 10,538,943 - 20,284,201 20,284,201
Reversal during the year - (16,374,648) (16,374,648) (467,401) (22,678,898) (23,146,299)
Closing 7,144,105 39,831,367 46,975,472 3,465,550 49,345,627 52,811,177

2025

8.2.1 Movement of provision in respect of Diminishing Musharakah

Total

2024

----------------------- Rupees --------------------

Specific General TotalSpecific

8.2.2 The following table sets out information about the provision in Expected Credit Losses (ECL)/ provision
as per modaraba regulation of diminishing musharaka financing:

Provision higher of ECL (IFRS) or as per modaraba regulation
Stage 1 - -
Stage 2 - -
Stage 3 39,832,489 49,346,750

39,832,489 49,346,750

9. LONG TERM LOAN

Long term loan - considered good 9.1 6,539,765 6,545,829
Less: Current portion of long term loan (2,299,116) (1,460,208)
Non-current portion 4,240,649 5,085,621

9.1 This includes Rs. 3.13 million (2024: 4 million) vehicle monetization loan for 5 years and Rs. 180,560
(2024: Nil) house furnishing loan of 3 basic salaries for 3 years, provided to Mr. Adnan Shakeel - CFO
& Company Secretary , related party under the monetization policy and house furnishing loan approved
by the Board.

10. FIXED ASSETS - In own use

Tangible assets 10.1 1,620,383 1,932,780
Intangible assets 10.2 68,756 2,782

1,689,139 1,935,562
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Note
--------------- Rupees ---------------

2025 2024

Note
--------------- Rupees ---------------

2025 2024



Furniture and
fittings

Office
equipment

Vehicles

As at June 30, 2023
Cost 1,565,217 2,973,240 1,354,275 3,014,796 8,907,528
Accumulated depreciation (1,105,192) (2,578,385) (1,070,262) (2,208,002) (6,961,841)
Net book value 460,025 394,855 284,013 806,794 1,945,687

Net carrying value basis
Year ended June 30, 2024
Opening net book value 460,025 394,855 284,013 806,794 1,945,687
Additions - at cost - 681,637 - 451,290 1,132,927
Disposal
Cost - -
Accumulated depreciation - - -

- - - - -
Depreciation charge (156,516) (212,495) (262,152) (514,671) (1,145,834)
Closing net book value 303,509 863,997 21,861 743,413 1,932,780

Gross carrying value basis
As at June 30, 2024
Cost 1,565,217 3,654,877 1,354,275 3,466,086 10,040,455
Accumulated depreciation (1,261,708) (2,790,880) (1,332,414) (2,722,673) (8,107,675)
Net book value 303,509 863,997 21,861 743,413 1,932,780

Net carrying value basis
Year ended June 30, 2025
Opening net book value 303,509 863,997 21,861 743,413 1,932,780
Additions - at cost 245,100 44,049 118,000 184,500 591,649
Disposal
Cost - (234,668) (1,310,775) - (1,545,443)
Accumulated depreciation - 234,664 1,310,775 - 1,545,439

- (4) - - (4)
Depreciation charge (177,660) (232,023) (29,729) (464,630) (904,042)
Closing net book value 370,949 676,019 110,132 463,283 1,620,383

Gross carrying value basis
As at June 30, 2025
Cost 1,810,317 3,464,258 161,500 3,650,586 9,086,661
Accumulated depreciation (1,439,368) (2,788,239) (51,368) (3,187,303) (7,466,278)
Net book value 370,949 676,019 110,132 463,283 1,620,383

Depreciation (% per annum) 10% 20% 20% 33.33%

Total

---------------------------------Rupees---------------------------------

Computer
and

accessories

10.1 TANGIBLE ASSETS
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Website Almanac
software

As at June 30, 2023
Cost 37,647 800,000 1,274,335 2,111,982
Accumulated amortization (37,646) (799,999) (1,247,181) (2,084,826)
Net book value 1 1 27,154 27,156

Net carrying value basis
Year ended June 30, 2024
Opening net book value 1 1 27,154 27,156
Additions - at cost - - - -
Amortization charge - - (24,374) (24,374)
Closing net book value 1 1 2,780 2,782

Gross carrying value basis
As at June 30, 2024
Cost 37,647 800,000 1,274,335 2,111,982
Accumulated amortization (37,646) (799,999) (1,271,555) (2,109,200)
Net book value 1 1 2,780 2,782

Net carrying value basis
Year ended June 30, 2025
Opening net book value 1 1 2,780 2,782
Additions - at cost 75,000 - - 75,000
Amortization charge (6,248) - (2,778) (9,026)
Closing net book value 68,753 1 2 68,756

Gross carrying value basis
As at June 30, 2025
Cost 112,647 800,000 1,274,335 2,186,982
Accumulated amortization (43,894) (799,999) (1,274,333) (2,118,226)
Net book value 68,753 1 2 68,756
Amortization (% per annum) 33.33% 33.33% 33.33%

Total

-----------------------------Rupees-----------------------------

Software
licenses

10.2 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Vehicle
Vehicle 1,310,775 1,310,775 - - - As Per HR Policy Mr Faraz uz Zafar Head of compliance

Office Equipments
Old inverter AC 234,668 234,664 4 60,000 59,996 Negotiation Afzal Cool Center None

2025 1,545,443 1,545,439 4 60,000 59,996
2024 - - - - -

Particular

10.3 Disposal of tangible asset

Cost Accumulated
Depreciation

Carrying
Value

Sale
Proceed

Gain Mode of
disposal

Particular
of buyer

Relationship of
purchaser with
the modaraba
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11. CREDITORS, ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Creditors 6,441 6,441
Modaraba management company's remuneration

payable - related party 26,709,832 34,631,681
Accrued expenses 11.1 13,996,240 11,373,336
Provision for Sindh Sales Tax on management

company's remuneration 4,006,475 5,194,752
Deferred morabaha income 6,358,277 -
Other liabilities 12.7 17,958,837 8,913,111

69,036,102 60,119,321

11.1 These includes Rs. 45,518 (2024: Rs. 54,000) for branch rent payable to Sindh Bank Limited, related
party.

Note
---------------- Rupees -----------------

2025 2024

12. PAYABLE TO GRATUITY FUND 12.1 1,036,752 1,390,203

12.1 Reconciliation of balance due to defined benefit plan

Present value of defined benefit obligation 12.2 7,700,717 6,020,800
Less: Fair value of plan assets 12.3 (6,663,965) (4,630,597)
Liability as per statement of financial position 1,036,752 1,390,203

12.2 Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation

Opening balance 6,020,800 4,561,051
Current service cost 1,274,381 1,170,371
Cost on defined benefit obligation 842,912 666,666
Benefit paid - (656,508)
Remeasurements charged to other comprehensive income
- Actuarial gains from changes in financial assumptions (14,376) (14,129)
- Experience adjustments (423,000) 293,349

(437,376) 279,220
Present value of defined benefit obligation 7,700,717 6,020,800

12.3 Changes in fair value of plan assets

Fair value of plan assets 4,630,597 3,519,775
Contributions 1,390,203 1,041,276
Expected income on plan assets 745,598 584,665
Benefit paid - (656,508)
Return on plan assets excluding expected income (102,433) 141,389
Fair value of plan assets 6,663,965 4,630,597

12.4 Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss

Current service cost 1,274,381 1,170,371
Cost on defined benefit obligation 842,912 666,666
Expected income on plan assets (745,598) (584,665)
Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss 1,371,695 1,252,372

12.5 Total remeasurement chargeable in the statement
of comprehensive income

Remeasurement of plan obligation:
Actuarial (gain) / loss from changes in financial assumptions (14,376) (14,129)
Experience adjustments (423,000) 293,349

(437,376) 279,220
Less: Return on plan assets, excluding expected income 102,433 (141,389)
Remeasurement of actuarial (gain) / loss on defined benefit liability (334,943) 137,831

Note
---------------- Rupees -----------------

2025 2024
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12.6 Changes in net liability

Liability as per statement of financial position 1,390,203 1,041,276
Expenses to be charged to the statement of profit and loss 1,371,695 1,252,372
Remeasurement chargeable in the statement of comprehensive income (334,943) 137,831
Contributions (1,390,203) (1,041,276)

1,036,752 1,390,203

---------------- Rupees -----------------
2025 2024

Significant actuarial assumptions
Discount rate used for cost and expected income

in the statement of profit and loss 14.00% 15.75%
Discount rate used for year end obligation 12.50% 14.00%

Salary increase used for year end obligation
Salary increase FY 2025 N/A N/A
Salary increase FY 2026 12.50% 14.00%
Salary increase FY 2027 12.50% 14.00%
Salary increase FY 2028 12.50% 14.00%
Salary increase FY 2029 12.50% 14.00%
Salary increase FY 2030 12.50% 14.00%
Salary increase FY 2031 onwards 14.00% 14.00%
Net salary is increased at 1-Jul-25 1-Jul-24

Mortality rates SLIC SLIC
(2001-05)-1 (2001-05)-1

The mortality rates are provided by the State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan (SLIC).

-------------- Percentage ---------------
2025 2024

Withdrawal rates

Retirement assumption Age 60 Age 60

2025 2024

Age-based
(per appendix)

Age-based
(per appendix)

Estimated expenses to be charged to the statement of profit and loss
Current services cost 1,274,381 1,274,381
Cost on defined benefit obligation 842,912 827,668
Expected income on plan assets (745,598) (705,929)

1,371,695 1,396,120

Plan assets comprise of
Cash and / or deposits 100% 100%

Year end sensitivity (+/- 100bps) on defined benefit obligation
Discount rate +100 bps 6,804,055 5,308,568
Discount rate - 100 bps 8,756,959 6,863,172
Salary increase +100 bps 8,757,162 6,863,888
Salary increase - 100 bps 6,787,650 5,295,189

Expected benefit payments for the next 10 years and beyond
FY 2026 261,043 275,116
FY 2027 285,825 309,723
FY 2028 321,835 353,746
FY 2029 353,301 397,715
FY 2030 393,952 450,525
FY 2031 1,843,963 2,122,869
FY 2032 460,849 551,715
FY 2033 517,427 631,588
FY 2034 592,861 736,550
FY 2035 5,283,391 254,560,718
FY 2036 onwards 172,863,529 -

The average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 13 years 13 years

---------------- Rupees -----------------
2025 2024

12.7 This also includes charity payable amounting to Rs. 763,061 (2024: Rs. 124,130). The reconciliation is as follows:
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Opening balance 124,130 2,816,769
Additions during the year 638,931 307,361
Less: paid to recognized charitable institutions 12.7.1 - (3,000,000)
Closing balance 763,061 124,130

12.7.1 This represents charity paid to recognized charitable institution.

13. TAXATION - NET

Opening balance - provision 8,307,484 10,555,612
Provision for taxation:
- Current year 72,374,934 105,580,200
- Prior year (16,106,713) (420,346)

56,268,221 105,159,854

Advance tax deducted / paid (62,539,923) (107,407,982)
Closing balance - provision 2,035,782 8,307,484

13.1 Relationship between accounting profit and taxation

Accounting profit before taxation 236,382,009 306,490,374

Tax at the applicable tax rate of 29% (2024: 29%) 68,550,783 88,882,208
Tax effect of:
- Permanent differences - -
- Adjustments relating to prior years (16,106,713) (420,346)
- Others 3,824,151 16,697,992

56,268,221 105,159,854

13.2 The provision for current tax is based on normal income tax charges as per the relevant sections of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001.

13.3 Deferred tax asset amounting to Rs. 16.33 million ( 2024: 7.82 million) has not been accounted for in these financial
statements and Company believe that they may not be able to utilize the deferred tax asset in full.

---------------- Rupees -----------------
2025 2024Note

14. CERTIFICATE CAPITAL

14.1 Authorized certificate capital

50,000,000 50,000,000 Modaraba certificate of Rs. 10 each 500,000,000 500,000,000

14.2 Issued, subscribed and paid - up certificate capital

45,000,000 45,000,000 Modaraba certificates of 450,000,000 450,000,000
Rs. 10 each fully paid in cash.

-------Number of shares-------

-------Number of shares-------

---------------- Rupees -----------------
2025 20242025 2024

2025 2024

14.3 As at June 30, 2025, Sindh Modaraba Management Limited (Management Company) holds 42,446,000 i.e. 94.33%
(2024: 42,446,000 i.e. 94.33%) certificates of the Modaraba.

15. RESERVES

Revenue
Unappropriated profit 304,803,450 216,627,477

Capital
Statutory reserve 15.1 236,705,182 200,682,424

541,508,632 417,309,901

---------------- Rupees -----------------
2025 2024

Note

51



15.1 The statutory reserve represents profit set aside by the Modaraba to comply with the Modaraba Regulations
issued by the SECP.

During the year, the Modaraba has transferred an amount of Rs. 36,022,758 (2024: Rs. 40,266,104)
which represents 20% (2024: 20%) of the net profit after tax for the year.

16. LONG TERM LOAN 16.1 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000

Note
---------------- Rupees --------------

2025 2024

16.1 This represents interest free loan provided by the Management Company (related party) to the Modaraba.
The loan is sub-ordinated to senior debt and is repayable at the discretion of Modaraba. The Modaraba
has the option to issue modaraba certificates in future against this loan, subject to necessary regulatory
approvals.

17. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

17.1 CONTINGENCIES

17.1.1 The Modaraba received a letter from the Assistant Commissioner - Sindh Revenue Board (SRB), wherein,
it is mentioned that during scrutiny of the financial statements of the Modaraba from July-2014 to March
2018 he came to know that the Modaraba is engaged in providing / rendering taxable services which falls
under the Second Schedule of Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011 (the Act), and the sales tax on
such services mainly ijarah / lease rentals aggregates to Rs. 27.67 million which is outstanding. Such
letters were also received by some other Modarabas and collectively, a petition against the same was
filed through a common legal counsel in the Honorable High Court of Sindh challenging levy of Services
Sales Tax on ijarah / lease financing transactions. The Honorable High Court has granted a stay stating
that no adverse order in respect of the proposed treatment shall be made against the Petitioners.

The management of the Modaraba based on discussions with its legal counsel is of the view that the
Sindh Sales Tax is not applicable on ijarah transactions and expect that the matter will be decided in
Modarabas’ favor. Accordingly, no liability in respect of the above has been recognized in these financial
statements.

17.1.2 Government of Sindh through the Sindh WWF Act, 2014, has introduced levy of SWWF. As per Sindh
WWF Act, 2014, Banks / Financial Institutions are included in definition of “Industrial Establishment” Sindh
WWF is imposed at the rate of 2% to the total income. Since the Banks and other Financial Institutions
including Modarabas are trans-provincial entity with the operations in other Provinces as well, the
Modarabas & other financial institutions along with other banks have filed a suit before Honorable Sindh
High Court and challenged the vires of SWWF.

In this respect, the Court in its order dated January 21, 2025, has referred the matter to the Decision of
the Council of Common Interest on agenda item 14 dated December 23, 2019 wherein it was decided
that the trans-provincial Entities are under the domain of Federal Legislation. In the light of the above
judgement, the levy of SWWF is no more payable to SRB unless the Honorable Supreme Court/Parliament
reverses the decision or provides interim relief to SRB. Further, Sindh Modaraba being a Sindh Government
owned entity through Sindh Modaraba Management limited, does not fall within the definition of “industrial
establishment”.

Keeping in view the above and as the matter has been taken-up with Government of Sindh to intervene
in the matter being Sindh Government Entity as such no provision has been recognized in these financial
statements for SWWF. The Modaraba is confident of a favorable outcome and, accordingly, considers
the exposure to be contingent in nature.

17.2 COMMITMENTS

There are no commitments outstanding at at June 30, 2025 (2024: Nill)
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18. ADMINISTRATIVE AND OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances and other benefits 18.1 & 18.6 61,695,716 43,517,318
Travelling and conveyance 9,481,231 7,124,322
Legal and professional charges 18.2 2,778,163 2,770,123
Utility services 1,870,584 1,689,915
Repairs and maintenance 1,832,660 1,491,955
Takaful - financing assets 1,560,266 704,437
Registration and subscription fee 1,364,755 1,230,570
Generator sharing and fuel charges 18.3 1,199,819 1,181,179
Depreciation - tangible assets 10.1 904,042 1,145,834
Entertainment 854,236 435,991
Rent, rates and taxes 18.4 729,372 828,016
Printing, stationery and photocopy 711,788 564,579
Security services 600,000 600,000
Advertisement and publications 567,632 215,769
Auditors' remuneration 18.5 442,104 340,394
Miscellaneous 350,864 199,899
Takaful - owned assets 235,358 189,395
Postage, courier and telegraphs 191,588 288,279
Donation 43,596 -
Staff orientation and training 15,600 29,900
Amortization - intangible assets 10.2 9,026 24,374

87,438,400 64,572,249

---------------- Rupees -----------------
2025 2024Note

18.1 This includes an amount of Rs. 1,488,935 (2024: Rs. 1,443,812) charged to the provident fund and a provision for
gratuity of Rs. 1,371,695 (2024: Rs. 1,252,372).

18.1.1 Defined contribution plan

Size of the fund (total assets) 19,643,352 14,777,484
Cost of investment made 19,508,704 14,558,037
Fair value of investment made 19,508,704 14,558,037

Percentage of investment made 99% 99%

Break up of Investment at cost

---------------- Rupees -----------------

Unaudited
2025

Audited
2024

------------- Percentage --------------

2024

Rupees

2025

Percentage Rupees Percentage

19,508,704 99% 14,558,037 99%

18.2 This includes an amount of Rs. 600,000 (2024: Rs. 502,000) charged to Shariah Advisor as compensation for his
service.

18.3 This includes an amount of Rs. 1,080,000 (2024: Rs. 1,080,000) against sharing of expenses with Sindh Insurance
Limited - related party.

18.4 This includes an amount of Rs. 529,356 (2024: Rs. 574,000) branch rent to Sindh Bank Limited - related party.
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18.5 Auditors' remuneration

Annual audit fee 178,632 178,632
Half yearly review fee 53,724 53,724
Shariah audit fee 100,000 -
Special certification fee 42,000 47,009
Other services 20,000 20,000
Sindh sales tax 32,748 25,214
Out of pocket expenses 15,000 15,815

442,104 340,394

18.6 The remuneration paid to key management personnel

Basic salary 11,892,923 7,672,888
House rent allowance 5,351,815 3,452,800
Medical & utility allowance 2,378,585 1,534,578
Bonuses 3,542,210 2,136,036
Provident fund 647,819 517,611
Other benefits 8,810,177 5,140,107

32,623,529 20,454,020

Number of executives at the end of the year 7 4

---------------- Rupees -----------------
2025 2024

----------Number-----------

19. REVERSAL OF PROVISION FOR DOUBTFUL
RECEIVABLES - NET

Reversal against Diminishing Musharaka - net 4,766,261 2,862,098
4,766,261 2,862,098

20. OTHER INCOME - NET

Documentation and processing fee 7,874,632 363,000
Gain on disposal of fixed assets 59,996 -
Others 36,361 323,172

7,970,989 686,172

21. MODARABA MANAGEMENT COMPANY'S REMUNERATION 21.1 26,709,832 34,631,681

21.1 The Modaraba Management Company is entitled to remuneration under the provisions of the Modaraba Companies
and Modarabas (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 upto a maximum of 10% per annum of annual profits of the
Modaraba computed in the prescribed manner. The remuneration for the year ended June 30, 2025, has been
recognized at 10% (2024: 10%) of the profit for the year before charging such remuneration and taxation.

22. EARNINGS PER CERTIFICATE - BASIC AND DILUTED

22.1 Basic

Basic earnings per certificate is calculated by dividing the net profit after taxation for the year by the weighted average
number of certificates outstanding during the year as follows:

Profit for the year after taxation (Rupees) 180,113,788 201,330,520

Weighted average number of certificates (Numbers) 45,000,000 45,000,000

Earnings per certificate (Rupees) 4.00 4.47

---------------- Rupees -----------------
2025 2024

Note

2025 2024

22.2 Diluted

Diluted earnings per certificate has not been presented as the Modaraba does not have any convertible instruments
in issue as at June 30, 2025 which would have any effect on the earnings per certificate.

54



23. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Total numbers of employees at year end 18 15

Average number of employees 17 15

-------------- Numbers ----------------
2025 2024

24. RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS

The Modaraba has related party relationship with the Management Company, its associated companies, directors and
key management personnel.

The details of related party transactions and balances otherwise than disclosed else where in these financial statement
are as follows:

24.1 TRANSACTIONS FOR THE YEAR

Sindh Bank Limited - associated company
Income from deposits 131,633 434,934
Income from term deposit receipt - -
Branch rent paid 537,838 624,000

669,471 1,058,934

Sindh Modaraba Management Limited - management company
Modaraba management company's remuneration paid 34,631,681 21,936,310
Dividend paid / distributed 53,057,500 53,057,500

87,689,181 74,993,810

Sindh Insurance Limited - associated company
Takaful paid 5,001,887 2,312,972
Sharing of expenses paid 1,080,000 1,080,000

6,081,887 3,392,972

Key Management Personnel
Salaries, allowances and benefits paid 18.6 32,623,529 20,454,020

Sindh Modaraba Employees Provident Fund - employee fund
Contribution paid (both employer's and employee's contribution) 2,977,870 2,887,624

Sindh Modaraba Employees Gratuity Fund - employee fund
Contribution paid 1,390,203 1,041,276

25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Financial assets as per the statement of financial position

At amortized cost
Current assets
- Cash and bank balances 371,724,227 202,142,642
- Short term investments - 950,000,000
- Deposits and other receivables 24,093,977 37,375,254
- Current portion of diminishing musharaka 726,974,570 324,247,982
- Morabaha 212,819,445 -
- Current portion of long term advances 522,372 -
- Current portion of long term loan 2,299,116 1,460,208

1,338,433,707 1,515,226,086
Non-current assets
- Long term portion of diminishing musharaka 716,692,373 414,665,176
- Long term advances 726,823 -
- Long term loan 4,240,649 5,085,621

721,659,845 419,750,797
2,060,093,552 1,934,976,883

Financial liabilities as per the statement of financial position
At amortized cost
Current liabilities
- Creditors, accrued and other liabilities 69,036,102 60,119,321
- Payable to gratuity fund 1,036,752 1,390,203
- Profit distribution payable 1,190,116 1,075,380

71,262,970 62,584,904

---------------- Rupees -----------------
2025 2024

Note
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The activities of the Modaraba is exposed to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Risk
is inherent in the Modaraba's activities, but it is managed through monitoring and controlling activity which are viably
setup based on the limit established by the Management company.The Board of Directors of the Management Company
has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Modaraba's risk management framework.

26.1 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of three types of risks: currency risk, profit rate risk and other price
risk.

26.2 Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist in foreign
currencies. As at June 30, 2025, Modaraba has no financial assets and liabilities in foreign currencies.

26.3 Profit rate risk

Profit rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in the market profit rates. The Modaraba has adopted appropriate policies to minimise its exposure to this
risk.

26.4 Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices (other than those arising from profit rate risk or currency risk) whether those changes are caused
by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments
traded in the market. As on June 30, 2025, the Modaraba did not hold any instruments which exposes it to price risk.

26.5 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other
party to incur a financial loss. The risk generally emanates from balances with banks, Ijarah rentals receivable,
Investments and Diminishing Musharaka arrangements, deposits and other receivables.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period without taking into account any collateral held
or other credit enhancement amounts are as follows:

Cash and bank balances 371,724,227 202,142,642
Short term investments - 950,000,000
Diminishing Musharaka 1,443,666,943 738,913,158
Morabaha 212,819,445 -
Deposits and other receivables 24,093,977 37,375,254
Long term advances 1,249,195 -
Long term loan 6,539,765 6,545,829

2,060,093,552 1,934,976,883

As at June 30, 2025, there were no financial assets which were pledged as collateral for liabilities or contingent
liabilities of the Modaraba.

26.6 Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors affect groups of counterparties whose
aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Modaraba's total credit exposure. Concentrations of credit
risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Modaraba's performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

The Modaraba manages credit risks and its concentration through diversification of activities to avoid undue concentration
of risk with individuals, groups or specific industry segments. For this purpose, the Modaraba has established exposure
limits for individuals and industrial sectors.

---------------- Rupees -----------------
2025 2024
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26.6.1 Details of the sector analysis of gross investment portfolio is as follows:

2024

Rupees

2025

% Rupees %

Sectors

Sugar 631,307,316 37.04 96,458,321 12.18
Oil & Gas - Oil Marketing 45,991,209 2.70 9,870,000 1.25
Electric and power 1,800,000 0.11 15,125,720 1.91
Services 33,890,677 1.99 5,015,890 0.63
Individual 58,781,968 3.45 46,960,986 5.93
Printing and packaging 33,931,116 1.99 - -
Transport 48,756,750 2.86 43,813,807 5.53
Metal & Steel 100,000,000 5.87 2,085,416 0.26
Construction 56,786,113 3.33 98,736,444 12.47
Pharmaceutical 75,000,000 4.40 - -
Poultry, Poultry feed & hatchery 37,835,271 2.22 47,795,187 6.04
Chemical & Allied (Other) 163,279,524 9.58 97,485,342 12.31
Textile 108,370,769 6.36 39,961,633 5.05
Food & Beverages 15,305,000 0.90 43,750,000 5.53
Energy 38,762,198 2.27 35,000,000 4.42
Health 245,779,691 14.42 148,385,417 18.74
Others 8,953,700 0.53 61,280,172 7.74

1,704,531,302 100 791,724,335 100

26.6.2 Management of credit risk

The Modaraba's policy is to enter into financial contracts in accordance with the internal risk management polices and
the requirements of the Prudential Regulations (PRs) for Modarabas issued by the SECP. The Modaraba seeks to
manage its credit risk exposure through diversification of its diminishing musharka and morabaha arrangements to
avoid undue concentration of risks with individuals or groups of customers in specific locations or businesses.

The credit quality of Modaraba’s financial assets with banks is assessed with reference to external credit ratings.

Credit risk ratings Rating

Bank balances - Sindh Bank Limited AA- / A-1+ 3,993,595 2,359,273
Bank balances - Meezan Bank Limited AAA /A-1+ 19,992 18,925
Bank balances - MCB Islamic Bank Limited A+ / A-1 1,394 838
Bank balances - NRSP Micro Finance Bank Limited A- / A-2 20,783 19,435
Bank balances - Soneri Bank Limited AA- / A1+ 204,682,317 199,654,780
Bank balances - Al-Baraka Bank Pakistan Limited A+ / A-1 162,916,726 6,763
TDRs - Soneri Bank Limited AA- / A1+ - 950,000,000
Bank balances - Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited AA+ / A-1+ 1,136 1,053

371,635,943 1,152,061,067

---------------- Rupees -----------------
2025 2024

26.6.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Modaraba will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall due.
Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Modaraba will be required to pay its liabilities earlier than
expected or will face difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial liabilities as they fall
due. The Modaraba's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable
losses or risking damage to the Modaraba's reputation. The maturity profile of Modaraba's financial assets and liabilities
based on the contractual maturities is as follows:

57



58



27. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board's policy is to maintain a sound capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence
and to sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital, which
the Modaraba defines as net profit for the year divided by total Certificate holders' equity. The Board of Directors
also monitors the level of dividend to ordinary certificate holders.

The Modaraba is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

The Modaraba finances its operations through equity and management of working capital with a view to maintain
an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk. There is no borrowing made by the
Modaraba as at the statement of financial position date, therefore, no gearing ratio is calculated.

28. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or liability settled, between knowledgeable
willing parties in an arm's length transaction. Consequently, differences can arise between carrying values and
the fair value estimates.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Modaraba is a going concern without any
intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse
terms.

International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 13, 'Fair value measurements' requires the Modaraba to
classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used
in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1);

- inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices) (level 2); and

- inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e., unobservable inputs)
(level 3).

As at June 30, 2025, there were no financial instruments which were measured at fair values in the financial
statements.

29. SEGMENT INFORMATION

As per IFRS 8: "Operating Segments", segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
used by the chief operating decision-maker. The Chief Executive Officer has been identified as the Chief
Operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the Modaraba’s entire product portfolio and considers the business
to have a single operating segment. The Modaraba’s asset allocation decisions are based on a single integrated
investment strategy and the Modaraba’s performance is evaluated on an overall basis.

The internal reporting provided to the Chief Executive Officer for the Modaraba’s assets, liabilities and performance
is prepared on a consistent basis with the measurement and recognition principles of approved accounting
standards as applicable in Pakistan.

The Modaraba is domiciled in Pakistan. All of the Modaraba’s income is from investment in entities incorporated
in Pakistan.

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a single reportable segment.

Revenue from operations from ten major customers of the Modaraba constitutes 63.81% (2024: 65.54% from
ten major customers) of the total revenue from operations during the year ended June 30, 2025.

30. Specific Disclosures for Sharia Compliant Companies

The disclosures required under clause 10 of item no. VI and item no. VII of the Fourth Schedule of the Companies
Act, 2017 for sharia complaint companies and the companies listed on Islamic index are as follows:
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S. No. Disclosure required Reference to the disclosure

i) Loans/advances obtained as per Islamic mode None.

ii) Financing (long-term, short-term, or lease financing)
obtained as per Islamic mode None.

iii) Long-term and short-term Shariah compliant Investments None.

iv) Shariah compliant bank deposits/bank balances Placed under Shariah permissible arrangement as
disclosed in Note 4.

v) Profit earned from shariah compliant bank Placed under Shariah permissible arrangement as
deposits/bank balances disclosed in statement of financial posit ion.

vi) Revenue earned from a shariah compliant All revenue earned is from shariah compliant business
business segment segment.Refer note 30.

vii) Break-up of late payments or liquidated damages None.

viii) Gain/loss or dividend earned from shariah Refer statement of profit and loss.
compliant investments

ix) Share of profit from Shariah-compliant associates None.

x) Exchange gain earned from actual currency None.

xi) Exchange gains earned using conventional derivative None.
financial instruments

xii) Mark-up / profit paid on Islamic mode of financing None.

xiii) Profits earned or interest accrued on any None.
conventional loan or advance

xiv) Source and detailed breakup of other income All of the other income is shariah compliant

xv) Relationships with Shariah-compliant financial Banker:
institutions, including banks, takaful operators Al Baraka Bank Limited, Soneri Bank Limited,
and their windows, etc. Sindh Bank Limited, Meezan Bank Limited,

MCB Islamic Bank, NRSP Microfinance bank"

Lessor:
None.

Takaful operators:
Sindh Insurance Limited -Window Takaful

31. NON - ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Board of Directors of the Management Company in their meeting held on September 18, 2025, approved a cash
distribution of Rs.1.35 per certificate. The financial statements of the Modaraba for the year ended June 30, 2025 do
not include the effect of this distribution which will be accounted for in the financial statements of the Modaraba for
the year ending June 30, 2026.
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32. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

Cash and bank balances 4 371,724,227 202,142,642
Short term investments 5 - 950,000,000

371,724,227 1,152,142,642

---------------- Rupees -----------------
2025 2024

Note

33. CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Prior year's figures have been reclassified for the purpose of better presentation and comparison where
considered necessary.

34. DATE OF AUTHORISATION

These financial statements were authorized for issue on September 18, 2025 by the Board of Directors
of the Management Company.

35. GENERAL

The figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupees.

For Sindh Modaraba Management Limited (Management Company - Owned by Government of Sindh)

Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial OfficerChairman
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Statement of Gender Pay Gap

In accordance with the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) Circular 10 of 2024, the
disclosure related to the gender pay gap for the year ended 30 June 2025 is provided below. The gender pay
gap is calculated based on the mean and median hourly rates of pay for full-pay relevant employees.

Mean Gender Pay Gap: 12.69%

Median Gender Pay Gap: -0.33%

Additional Data/Details:

Number of Male Employees 17
Number of Female Employees 2

Chief Executive Officer
On behalf of Board of Directors
Dated: 18 September 2025
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Pattern of Certificate holdings
as at June 30, 2025

Number of Certificate holding Total Certificate Held
Shareholders From To

313 1 100 3,686

421 101 500 204,755

58 501 1000 52,961

68 1001 5000 184,415

14 5001 10000 94,672

11 10001 15000 136,406

9 15001 20000 172,009

4 20001 25000 87,200

1 25001 30000 28,000

1 30001 35000 35,000

3 35001 40000 111,636

1 40001 45000 42,000

2 45001 50000 100,000

2 50001 55000 102,838

1 65001 70000 68,000

1 70001 75000 70,624

1 75001 80000 76,500

1 85001 90000 90,000

1 145001 150000 150,000

1 170001 175000 170,298

1 245001 250000 249,000

1 320001 325000 324,000

1 42445001 42450000 42,446,000

917 45,000,000
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Categories Of Certificate holders Certificate Held Percentage

(i) Government; NIL

(ii) Associated Companies, Undertakings and
Related Parties (name wise details);

Sindh Modaraba Management Ltd. 42,446,000 94.33

(iii) Mutual Funds; NIL

(iv) Directors, Chief Executive, and their spouse
and minor children (name wise details);

Abdul Rauf Chandio - CEO/Director 500 0.00

(v) Executives;

- Faraz Uz Zafar - Head of Compliance 2,000 0.00
- Ishfaque Ahmed - Head of Legal,

Corporate Affairs & SAM 1,000 0.00
- Tahoora Ishfaque - Spouse 500 0.00

3,500 0.01

(vi) Public Sector Companies and corporations; NIL

(vii) Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non-Banking Finance Companies,
Insurance Companies,Takaful Companies and Modarabas;

Hafiz Limited 20,000 0.04

Individual

Individuals 2,530,500 5.62

Grand Total: 45,000,000 100.00

Certificate holders holding five percent or more voting rights in the Public Sector Company

Certificates Held Percentage

Sindh Modaraba Management Ltd. 42,446,000 94.33
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL REVIEW MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 11th Annual Review Meeting of certificate holders of Sindh Modaraba
will be held on 24th October 2025 at 10:30 A.M. at 602, Progressive Centre, 30-A, Block-6, P.E.C.H.S.,
Shahrah-e-Faisal,Karachi to review the performance of the Modaraba for the year ended June 30,
2025 in terms of clause 20 of the Prudential Regulations for Modaraba issued vide Circular number
4/2004 by Registrar Modaraba Companies and Modarabas.

The Board of Directors of Sindh Modaraba has approved a final cash dividend of 13.50% (Rs. 1.35
per certificate) for the year ended June 30, 2025.

Weblink & QR Code:

https://sindhmodarabaltd.com/page-financial-reports

Karachi M. Adnan Shakeel
October 03,2025 Company Secretary
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Note:

1. The Modaraba Certificate transfer book shall remain closed from October 17, 2025 to October
24, 2025 (both days inclusive) to determine the names of Certificate Holders entitled to receive
dividends and to attend the Annual Review Meeting. Transfers received in order at the registrar's
office of the Modaraba up to the close of the business on October 16, 2025 will be treated in
time for the entitlement of profit distribution and to attend Annual Review Meeting.

2. The certificate holders are advised to notify to the registrar of Sindh Modaraba, any change in
their addresses.

3. CDC certificate holders desiring to attend the meeting are requested to bring their original CNIC,
Account, and Participant's ID number, for identification purpose.

4. Since the members'/certificate holders of the Modaraba have approved the transmission/
circulation of the annual audited financial statements via QR-enabled code and Weblink in its
last Annual Review Meeting, the Modaraba has provided above the QR code and Weblink to
facilitate its members'/certificate holders.

5. Dividend income is liable to deduction of withholding tax under Section 151 of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001. Withholding of tax on dividend are based on 'Active' and 'Non-Active' status
of certificate holders where 'Active' means a person whose name appears on the Active Taxpayers
List available at e-portal of FBR (http://www.fbr.gov.pk/) and 'Non-Active' means a person whose
name is not being appeared on the Active Taxpayers list
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6. In case a Folio/CDS Account is jointly held, each joint-holder is to be treated separately as Active
or Non-Active, In terms of the said clarification, tax of each joint-holder has been deducted on
the gross dividend amount determined by bifurcating the certificate holding of each joint-holder
on equal proportions, except where certificate holding proportion of joint-holder(s) is pre-
defined as per the records of our Share Registrar and thus tax rates are applied in line with
respective proportions, Those certificate holders who are holding Folio/CDS jointly: are requested
to notify (in writing) any change in their certificate holding proportions to our Share Registrar
(in case of physical certificate holding) or their Participants/CDC Investor Account Services so
that their revised certificate holding proportions are considered by the Modaraba in all prospective
dividend payouts, if any. Certificate holders seeking exemption from deduction of income tax
or are eligible for deduction at a reduced rate, are requested to submit a valid tax exemption
certificate or necessary documentary evidence as the case may be to the Share Registrar of
Modaraba.

7. Under the provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, it is mandatory for a listed
company to pay cash dividend to its shareholders only through electronic mode directly into
bank account designated by the entitled shareholders. Therefore, all the certificate holders of
Sindh Modaraba are hereby advised to provide dividend mandate of their respective banks in
the "Dividend Mandate Form" available on the website of the Share Registrar. Certificate holders
maintaining holding under Central Depository System (CDS) are advised to submit their bank
mandate information directly to the relevant participant / CDC Investor Account Service. In the
absence of bank account details or in case of incomplete details, Modaraba will be constrained
to withhold the payment of cash dividend of those certificate holders who have not provided
the same.

8. Certificate holders, who by any reason, could not claim their dividends or did not collect their
physical Modaraba certificates, are advised to contact our Share Registrar to enquire about their
unclaimed dividend or pending Modaraba certificates.

Please note that in compliance with Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017, after having
completed the stipulated procedure, all dividends unclaimed for a period of three years from
the date due and payable shall be deposited to the credit of the Federal Government /SECP and
in case of shares, shall be delivered to the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

9. As per requirement of Companies Act, 2017, all listed companies are required to replace the
Certificates held in physical form with the Certificates to be issued in Book-Entry, all Certificate
holders holding Certificates in physical form are requested to convert their shares in Book-Entry
Form in order to comply with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017. Certificate holders
may contact the Modaraba's Share Registrar to understand the process of conversion of Certificates
held in physical form, into the Book-Entry Form.

10. In view of prohibition under Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2017, the Company does not
distribute gifts in any form to its members in the general meetings.
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